
Legislative Assembly Of Manitoba 

DEBATES and PROCEEDINGS 

Speaker 

The Honourable A. W. Harrison 

Volume IV No. 45 March 17, 1960 2nd Session, 26th Legislature 

Printed by R. s. · Ev8.ns. Queen's Printer for the Province of Manitoba, Winnipeg 



DAILY INDEX 

Thursday, March 17, 1960, 2:30p.m. 

Committee Report: Law Amendments (Mr. Lyon) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •• . • • • • • • • • 1667 
Introduction of Bills: No. 123 (Mr. Witney) ••••••••• • • •••••••••••••••• . ••• .-• • • • • • 1667 
Committee of Supply: .Capital Supply, Other Requirements ......................... 1667 



THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA 
2:30 o'clock, Thursday, March 17th, 1960 

Opening prayer by Mr. Speaker. 
MR . SPEAKER: Presenting Petitions. 

Reading and Receiving Petitions • 

Presenting Reports by S•anding and Selec• Como.ittees • 

HON. STERLING R. LYON (Attorney-General)(Fort Garry): Mr. Speaker, I beg to pre­
sent tile fifth report of the Select Standing Committee on Law Amendments. 

MR . CLERK: The Select Standing Committee on Law Amendments beg leave to present 
tile following as their fifth report. Your Committee has considered Bill No.48, an Act to Pre­
vent Discrimination Against Any Persons With Respect to tile Provisions of Accommodation by 
Reason of Race, Religion, Religious Creed, Color, Ancestry, Etimic or Natural Origin; No. 96, 
An Act to Incorporate the Winnipeg Board of Trade ai!.d has agreed to report the same without 
amendments. 

MR . LYON; Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Honourable the Minister of 
Public Works, that the report of the Committee be Teceived. 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and following a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
MR .  SPEAKER: Notice of Motion. Introduction of Bills. The Honourable the Minister 

of Mines and Resources. 
HON. JOHN THOMPSON, Q.C. (Minister of Public Works}(Virden} in the absence of 

The Honourable the Minister of Mines introduced Bill No.l23, An Act to amend the Mines Act. 
Mr. Speaker presented the motion and following a voice vote declared tile motion carried. 
M"R; SPEAKER: Orders of the Day. 
HON GURNEY EVANS (Minister of Industry and Commerce)(Fort Rouge): Mr. Speaker, 

I would like to lay on the table of the House a Return to the Order of the House No. 22, dated 
February 26th, on the motion of the Hcnour·able the Leader of the CCF Party, and also a regula­
tion under the Business Development Fund Act. 

MR. SPEAKER: Orders of the Day. 
HON. DUFF R OBLll.:f (Premier)(Wolseley): Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by 

the Honourable the Minister of Industry and Commerce that Mr. Speaker dow now leave the 
Chair and the House resolve itself into a Committee to consider of the supply to be g:ranted to 
Her Majesty. 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and following a voice vote declared the motion carried 
and the House resolved itself into a Committee to consider of the supply to be granted to Her 
Majesty. 

MR . SPEAKER: Would the Honourable Member.for St. Matthews please take the Chair. 
MR . C HAIR:MAN: Schedule B, Other requirements ( 5) . 
MR. D. L. CAMPBELL (Leader of the Opposition}(Lakeside): Mr. Chairman, when we 

rose last night I was engaged in a little bit of a discussion with the Honourable the First Minister 
as to whether the Honourable the First Minister had been rather optimistic in a report that he 
made to the House regarding fe deral financial assistance in the fall session of '58 and the Hon­
ourable the First Minister was quite sure that he hadn't. I was quite sure that he had. I have 
checked the matter a bit further, and I find that each of us was partially right, because while it 
was not on the Greater Winnipeg Floodway that the statement was made, it was in connection with 
the Fairford River works. And the Honourable the First Minister most definitely at that time 
referred, and I thought in quite optimistic terms to the likelihood of Federal financial assistance, 
and my comment arose because of the fact that I thought his report of yesterday was less optimi­
stic after a year and a half's time than it had been then. And I just wanted to call to the attention 
of the House, the fact that the Honourable the First Minister, who is such an advocate of making 
progress fast and getting things done in a hurry, and not allowing matters to drag, gives us no 
more information, actually, than he did at that time. And so I'll transfer my question to •he 
Fairford River Works instead of the Greater Winnipeg Floodway, Mr. Chairman, and ask the 
First Minister now if he has anything more optimistic to report in that regard. 

MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Chairman, the F:iil.rford River Dam as far as we are concerned at 
the present time, is part of the whole flood control complex and any remarks that I make in 
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(Mr. Roblin, cont'd.) • • • . •  connection with Fairford River would apply to the rest of the scheme 
as well. 

MR . CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, it may be part of the whole flood context but it is 
shown here as a separate item. At least it's one of the three items that were ---one of the 
three items in the vote that we're discussing now, Seine River, Lake Manitoba and Red River 
Valley Flood protection. And surely we are entitled to some statement. We had one with re­
gard to the position of federal financial assistance regarding the Floodway, surely we 're entitled 
to some statement as to how the negotiations are proceeding with regard to the Fairford River 
works. 

MR . ROBLIN: My honourable friend will recall, Mr. Chairman, our statement on 
March 16th of last year, made it clear that we were dealing with the Federal Government in 
respect of all these matters as one unit. And that is the reason why I say that what I said with 
respect to the Floodway applies to the Fairford Dam as well. Because our position is, that the 
whole of these matters are related. They are in terms either of the Red River Basin Investi­
gation and Royal Commission Report, thpse two reports and the two reports that were made on 
Lake Manitoba. The reason for that of course, is because the question of the cut-off into Lake 
Manitoba links these matters together. And the stand we have taken with the Federal Govern­
ment as outlined in that statement last March was that we wish these matters to be considered 
by them as a total and our negotiations in connection with all these matters are being conducted 
in one package at the present time. Now it may turn out that the Federal Government is not 
willing to consider them as one package, but up to the present .time they are and that's the way 
in which our negotiations are proceeding. 

MR . CAMPBELL: The Honourable the First Minister insists on dealing with the state.:. 
ment of March 16th, last year but I am referring to the statement of November of the year be­
fore and that's some months earlier. And the point that lam trying to make with my honourable 
friend is that when he impressed upon the committee at that time, or the House it was, I believe, 
that he spoke in, that they were moving very quickly in this regard, very quickly, and that he 
expected to have an answer soon. Now a year and a half later from that, we still have exactly 
the same kind of a statement with not even the assurance that he expects an answer soon. And 
to use the term that my honourable friend used to use so frequently when he spoke from this 
side of the House, Mr. Chairman, this is a most unsatisfactory answer·. 

MR. ROBLIN: One great difference at least, Mr. Chairman, between the situation then 
and the situation now. At the present time the Government of Manitoba is actually doing some­
thing about the physical works in question which is something tha.t my honourable friend never 
got around to attempting. 

MR. CAMPBELL: We got around to doing the one job which I still maintain is a great 
protection to the City of Winnipeg, to Greater Winnipeg in general, we got around to doing that 
job and doing it well, Mr. Chairiiian, in co-operation with the Federal Government of that day 
and having the wJtole job wound up in the time that my honourable friend has been talking to the 
Federal Government and has made, so far as any report to this Committee is concerned, 
absolutely no progress. And that job was done within that length of time. And in spite of the 
opinions that my honourable friend and others may hold, I still say that with the amount of 
equipment that is always concentrated in this area in the time of the year that flooding takes 
place if it's going to take place, with the amount of building equipment that is concentrated here 
in the environs c.f Greater Winnipeg, with the base already built in the way it is, that this area· 
could fight and would fight successfully a flood of the proportions of 1950. Now I know that the 
finding of.the Commission does not agree with that, but quite frankly I don't agree with their 
findings in that regard. I hope we don't find it necessary to put it to the test but I say quite 
frankly that if we do I would have no doubt at all of the result. And that job, with an expendi­
ture of 5 1/2 million ·dollars or thereabouts, which was thought to be considerable amount of 
money at that time was done, was done, completed in about the same length of time that my 
honourable friend has been talking to the Federal Government about this one and we have no 
more optimistic report than we got yesterday. 

MR. ROBLIN: Mr-. Chairman, ·in reply to that I'd just like to say that going back to the 
Fairford River Dam, I repeat my statement that we are getting on with that job which my 
honourable friend never saw fit to do. Now I would just like to say one other thing. It's 
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(Mr. Roblin, cont'd.) • • • • • •  perfectly true that the diking system around the City of Winnipeg 
was completed and is completed. The only drawback is that the Royal Commiss:ion told us that 
that wasn't good enough. Otherwise, why would we be in the process of th€"le '¥orks we are 
undertaking now? And if my honourable friend tells me now that he doesn't think the Royal 
Commission was right I want to say that this is a fine time to let us in on that piece of opinion, 
because if be held that view, surely he should have made some statement about that last March 
when this matter came up and when the Royal Commission Report came in. And if that is the 
view of the menibers on the opposite side of the House I think that we are very interested to know 
that, and I'm sure other people will be too,because that strikes at the root of th•a whole thing. 
If he believes that the Royal Commission report is wrong or is not necessary, or that his works 
were satisfactory and these works that we're proposing are unnecessary then that puts a com­
pletely different complexion on his complaint, and I would understand it if that were the case. 
But I must say that this is the first time that be's ever intimated to my knowledge that the Royal 
Commission Report was unacceptable to him. I take the other point of view; I say, Sir, that 
although it took my honourable friend some three or four years to get around to appointing the 
Royal Commission, that when be finally did appoint them, they were a satisfactory Commission 
indeed. I have confidence in that Commission. The work that they undertook was done in colla­
boration w ith the very best advice that could be obtained, not only in this country but in the 
United states. They went as far afield as they thought necessary in order to obtain the information 
that was required to finalize their report. And I must say that it comes as a bit of a surprise to 
me to find that my honourable friend does not accept their recommendations. We think that it is­
the best engineering and financial advice that was available to us and we, ourselves, have come 
to the conclusion that we would be wise to accept it and that's why we're underuiking the meas-
ures that we have in hand. 

· · 

MR. CAMPBELL: The trouble is, Mr. Chairman, that we haven't got them in hand very 
well. My honourable friend has beep. saying ever since the report of the Commission came in 
what they're going to do, but there is very little done as yet and.the honourable the Minister in 
charge said yesterday that be expected it would be six or seven years before this work would be 
completed. So whether we like it or not there's another six or seven years that Greater Winni­
peg has to realize that it's going to put up with the defences that it has now, and I say as I have 
said many times in the past, my honourable friend didn't bear me say this for the first time, 
I've said it many times in the past and I believe those defences to be adequate. On the other 
hand, the Royal Commission certainly made a much more capable study then -- it's a much 
more considered opinion than mine could be.. They've had expert advice of the very highest 
order, and I'm not going to set my opinion up against theirs, and I don't opp<ise the going along 
with their recommendations. I still say that I hope we don't have to depend upon these works 
and what can be done to supplement them; I hope we don't have to depend on them to fight a flood 
in the meantime, but if we do, I say quite frankly I have no fear of the result. In the meantime, 
for insurance for the long term and in order to give that added confidence that the Royal Com­
mission quite properly speaks of, to achieve that added confidence and a greater degree of in­
surance and assurance to the people who are here and who will be coming I am prepared to go 
along with the recommendation for this huge amount of extra work. But we won't have it for a 
long time at best, and it's a tremendous rmount of money and I think that before my honourable 
friend, the First Minister dashed off with his statement about that he was willing to go it alone, 
that he should have had a lot better understanding with the Federal Government than he is able 
to report on as yet. 

Now as far as the Fairford is concerned, because my honourable friend seems to want to 
debate that particular subject as well, as far as the Fairford is concerned we had no such re­
commendation for this work while we were still in office so that there was no delay as far as that 
one was concerned. And it's true that we had flooding on Lake Manitoba and Winnipeg and it's 
true that we didn't get the Commission set up in time for works to be undertaken that would give 
any relief in that flood but I never pretended that we would. I said to them all the time, that 
nothing that we could do or would do at that time would be beneficial as far as that particular 
flood was concerned. All we could do was to set up a competent Commission to survey the 
situation and make recommendations so that works could be undertaken that would be there for 
the next time of high water because I suppose it will come again. But that's the difference between 
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(Mr. Campbell, cont'd.) • • • • •  ourselves and the Honourable the Leader of the government 
today, is that we didn't pretend we were going to do these things on our oWn. and we didn't pre­
tend that we were getting federal financial assistance until we were assured of some federal 
financial assistance and we were never assured of it, never. As far as the Federal Govern­
ment was concerned on the floodway. We never did get that assurance, and that's the reason 
that we were loath to even pretend that we were going to undertake it on our own. 

MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Chairman, that's an interesting change of tune and I'm glad to hear 
my honourable friend does think the Royal Commission is worth something and that we should 
go ahead with it as we are. I would simply say to him that we are in a position of having been 
assured by the Federal Government that they will share in these works, as my honourable 
friend is well aware. (Interjection). Well, that's coming but we are assured that they will 
participate. I say to him that if he had exercised some of this concern of his while he was 
sitting around for his three or four years making up his mind to have the Royal Commission in 
the first place, the works would be half done by now. 

MR. D. ORLIKOW (St. John's.) • . . . .  Mr. Chairman, I must say first of all that I share 
with the Honourable Leader of the Opposition some disappointment at the rate which this work is 
being proceeded with. I remember very well the speech which the lionourahle Premier made 
in which he said that the government, this government, would go it alone if necessary. Now I 
hope, I'm sure every member of the House here and every person in Manitoba hopes that this 
go it alone won't be necessary; that we won't have to pay this money by ourselves; I also hope 
that the statements that the work is proceeding, the planning work is proceeding as rapidly as 
possible, is really true and I hope that the arrangements with the Federal Government will be 
completed so that when the planning work is ready that the work will be able to begin because I 
suppose we can all agree with what the Minister said yesterday that this year it doesn't look 
like we are likely to have a flood but we can't be certain that this will be true in the next two or 
three or four years and the faster we got on with the job the better, I'm sure, all the people in 
the Greater Winnipeg area will feel. I must say that I found it somewhat difficult to follow the 
Leader of the Opposition -- it seemed to me that he was on all sides of the argument in the 
last ten minutes. First he said that in his opinion and-- I didn't take it down but I guess it 
will be in Hansard eventually-- first he sitid in his opinion, he didn't think that the recommen­
dations of the Royal Commission were necessary; he thought the flood defences we have up till 
now could do the job; then later he said well, they were more expert than he was and he 
wouldn't want to argue with them. Well I'm not certain that the detailed plans or the general 
plans which they have elaborated are plans which everybody will accept lOO% but I'm certain of 
one thing, Mr. Chairman, and that is that the people of Greater Winnipeg don't want to go through 
another periodofuncertainty and difficulty like we had in 1950, and I'm certain that 95% of them 
would not agree with the -what shall I say-- the suggestion at least, that I read into what the 
Honourable Leader of the Opposition said that maybe we ought to be satisfied with what we've 
got ·and not proceed with a more permanent and better system of flood protection. I don't think 
the people of Greater Winnipeg would buy that idea for one minute. 

MR . CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, I'm not attempting to argue that we should try to 
sell to the people of the area that we should depend on what we have gotten now. We set up this 
Royal Commission; we purposely picked as good people as we did in order to go into this qlies­
tion most fully and to get the best advice that they could; technical, economic and every other 
way because we were concerned about the long range implications and we were not prepared to 
take our own judgment on the matter for all time to come. There are great increases in the 
economic investment in this area, year after year after year and we didn't want to leave this 
question undecided and unsettled and therefore we set up this Commission and it's a good com­
mission and I'm not criticizing its work. I say it differed from the opinion that I always held 
and I say that I still have the feeling myself that with the amount and the kind of earthmoving 
equipment that we have now, with this five and a half million dollar base that was built after 
the other flood, that we can muster the amount of earth moving equipment to put this line o±' 
defence up to take care of a 1950 flood. I don't think, in my judgement there is much doubt of 
that fact. When you recall that in the most of the municipalities that we held it even in 50 with 
no preparations made in advance, no preparations made in advance. Now we have this wonder­
ful base all around, guarding the Greater Winnipeg area and the way that equipment could move 
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(Mr. Campbell, cont'd.) • • • • .  in now and build that up, I have no doubt about a flood of that 
magnitude. But, Mr. Chairman, the Commission says that we can't be guaranteed that there 
won't be one of twice that magnitudel as twice that magnitude and I'm not su.ying that one of 
that kind could be held. Honourable members will not wonder I suppose, when I say that I'm 
even inclined to doubt the historical accuracy of the size of that 1826 flood but it's hard to me 
to .envisage the fact that there could be a flood with twice the volume of water approximately 
that there was in the 1950 one. But the records say that there was such a flood, and one of the 
reasons that the Commission takes the view that they do, is th:;.t there might be one. It's a long 
time it's true but there might come any time of almost twice that magnitude. And so I say, 
that in spite of the views that I hold that we could contain one of the 50 size. I'm not trying 
to pretend that we could contain one of the '1826 size, if it should come now or later, so that's 
the reason that I am suggesting to the Honourable the First Minister that inasmuch as the 
decision has now been taken and I think generally accepted that for the long term advantage of 
this area, economic, and the peace of mind that my honourable friend speaks of, that there is 
justification for going ahead with this huge expenditure, but there's no justification for going 
ahead with it without some federal participation, because it's too big for the Province of 
Manitoba alone. My honourable friend should have a better agreement than he is able to report 
to this comrr..ittee yet, Mr. Chairman, before he has committed himself to the extent that be 
has. And so I wanted to raise this question and try and get as definite a statement as possible 
of just where the negotiations stand. My honourable friend's statement is, as I understand it, 
that he has a comitment that the federal government will do something. Just what that means 
I guess you and I will have to interpret, Mr. Chairman. 

MR . E. PREFONTAINE (Carillon): Mr. Chairman, I think it is a year ago yesterday, 
when this matter was discussed in the House and when I got up in the House and objected to 
the expenditure of $85,000, 000 when nothing in the plan proposed at that time would protect the 
upper valley towns and villages. And I remember distinctly that the Premier at that time said 
that some further studies would be made with respect to the upper valley towns and villages. I 
wonder if the Premier woUld have a statement to make with regard to these further studies. 

MR . ROBLIN: There has been nothing developed so far that is any improvement on what 
the Royal Commission recommended which was a ring dike around each of those communities 
Some general thought has been given to this problem but we are unabi�, so far, to devise any 
better solution to their particular problem than that one recommended by the Jtoyal Commis-
sion. 

MR. E. GUTTORMSON (St. George): Mr. Chairman, during the debate on this item, 
the First Minister has said that there have been offers and counter offers between the Provin­
cial and Federal Governments. One year ago, I asked for the correspondence to be tabled be­
tween the two governments regarding the $85,000,000 flood program which the Premier 
announced in this House. That correspondence has not yet been tabled. And the rights and 
privileges of this House are- being trampled on because we have not had that correspondence. 
In the House of Commons, the Prime Minister has been asked about this correspondence and he 
has replied that he is waiting for Manitoba, to get permission to release it. Surely we are 
entitled to that information. It shouldn't take a year to --for the departments concerned to 
furnish that information so it can be tabled in this House • 

l.VIR. ROBLIN: I want to assure my honourable friend that we've placed no obstacles in 
the way of that matter being tabled. 

MR . GUTTORMSON: Have Ottawa refused you permission to table that correspondence? 
MR . ROBLIN: Not to my knowledge. I'll have to look it up and see. 
MR . GUTTORl'flSON: Why isn't it tabled then if they haven't refused you--if you 

haven't been refused permission? 
MR. ROBLIN: My friend will have to let me go and look at the • • . • •  

MR. GUTTORMSON: But how much longer must we wait? It's a year n.ow. 
MR . ROBLIN: Well I have to get their permission. 
MR . GUTTORMSON: Well have you asked for it? 
MR . ROBLIN: Certainly we have. 
MR . GUTTORMSON: Have you got a reply from them? 
MR. ROBLIN: I'll have to find out. I don't know . 
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MR . GUTTORMSON: Has the First Minister had any request from Ottawa since 
February the 24th? 

· 

MR. ROBLIN: The First Minister has a great deal of correspondence going over his 
desk and I am quite unable to tell my honourable friend what the state of the correspondence is 
on this matter, but I certainly can find out and I shall. 

MR. GUTTORMSON: Well can we stand this item until we get the information? 
MR. ROBLIN: I don't think so.But I'll undertake to look into this matter and let my 

honourable friend know. 
MR . GUTTORMSON: Well, Mr. Chairman, that information' is very important to this 

side of the House and I feel we are entitled to it. It shouldn't take the First Minister a year to 
look after the correspondence. I agree it may take some time but not a year to provide that 
information. I asked the First Minister in this House at this present session and he said he 
would look into it and I am still waiting for it. 

· 

MR . ROBLIN: That's perfectly true and I did and I was told at that time that the cor­
respondence had not been completely assembled because it is in the hands of several depart­
ments, both here and at Ottawa and it was necessary to sort through that. But I know of no 
reason why my honourable friend cannot get that correspondence. We're not holding it up. I 
don't believe Ottawa is and if he'll allow me to go and check it sometime today I'll find out 
about it and let him know. But I assure him that we're not anxious to withold that information 
from him at all. 

MR. PREFONTAINE: Mr. Chairman, I believe that the Member for St. George is on 
sound ground. This is an Order of the House that was passed a year ago just about with res­
pect to this information and think he is entitled to get an answer. And we have a Beauchesne 
Rule, 389 and maybe we should take the step that's suggested here to call before the Bar those 
who refuse to comply with an Order of the House. Rule 389 says this: ''If parties neglect to 
make retu:rns in a reasonable time they are ordered to make them forthwith or so much of the 
terms as has not been made. If they continue to withold them they are ordered to attend at 
the Bar of the House and unless they satisfactorily explain the causes of their neglect, and 
comply with the Order of the House they will be censured or punished according to the circum­
stances of the case." I think that the Member for St. George has reasonable grounds. I think 
the rights and privileges of this House have been not lived up to by the First Minister in one 
instance, and I believe by the Minister of Education, in another instance that I brought up yes­
terday. 

MR . ROBLIN: Well I don't think so, Mr. Speaker, I'd like to point out that the Orders 
have to be dealt with in a certain way, reservations are made on those which involve corres­
pondence wit h other governments and we made the reservations. The first time this was 
brought up the matter was not completed because we didn't get reply from Ottawa as far as I 
know, at the time of our previous session, which was a rather short one. The Order lapses. 
My honourable friend introduced it again this session. We are doing our best to get the infor­
mation and I am confident that he is going to get it. 

MR . GUTTORMSON: A moment Mr. Chairman, will the Minister undertake to bring it 
in later on today then? 

MR . ROBLIN: I will not, but I will undertake to let my honourable friend know when I 
think it can be brought in. 

MR . GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, this is a very important item and I think that we 
should have that information so we can debate it. How else can we debate this thing properly, 
if we haven't got that information? Surely a year is enough time to get all that information . 

MR . ROBLIN: • • . • •  

MR. GUTTORMSON: Does it lapse? 
MR . CHAIRMAN: • • • • • •  

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, was there not an undertaking last year that Orders 
that had been passed for Returns and that were outstanding would be supplied after the House 
rose? 

MR. GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, in respect to the remark by the Leader of the 
Opposition, I asked about my Order just before the House rose and the Minister informed me 
that he would undertake to see that I got it after the House prorogued. 
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MR. ROBLIN: You'll get it. 
HON. GEORGE HUTTON (Minister of Agriculture)(Rockwood..:fuerville): . . • • • There is 

one aspect of flood control in the province that hasn't received any consideration in this debate 
and I for one believe it is as important as any other and that is the flood control on the Assini­
boine River. We know that the Royal Commission, in making its recommendations, recommen­
ded a dam on the Assini.boine River at Russell, and a diversion of the Assini.boine River from 
Portage la Prairie to Lake Manitoba. Now, since that time, it has been deemed wise and 
expedient to take a further look at the prospect of constructing a reservoir in the Holland area 
on the Assiniboine River and this work was undertaken by the PFRA on behalf of Manitoba. As 
a result of their investigations, they have found that a dam of approximately 600,000 acre feet 
capacity could be constructed a short distance west of the No.34 highway, and that the appro­
ximate estimated cost of this dam would be $17,000,000. The estimated cost of the Portage 
diversion at the time of the investigation was 8 1/2 million. Now there are certain factors to 
be considered in making a decision as between the Holland Dam and the Portage diversion. In 
the first place the Portage diversion offers an unlimited outlet for 25,000 CFS no matter bow 
long a period the flood crest might cover. ')n the other hand the Holland Dam offers the pros­
pect of not only flood control but water conservation. It holds out the benefit of sustaining flows 
in the Assiniboine River and the possibility, as I said yesterday, of firming up flows from the 
streams in south central Manitoba. And so before a decision, a firm decision can be reached 
;l.S to whether to undertake the diversion or the Holland Dam it is thought wise to carry out a 
further assessment of the benefits of the relative structures. I think it is fair to estimate that 
the present cost of constructing the Portage diversion will be well in excess of the 8 l/2 millions 
originally estimated and that we must weigh the benefits, the cost of maintemmce of the two 
projects. Now in western Manitoba the people from the Saskatchewan border on through Bran-

. don, are vitally concerned with the Russell Dam, and at the present time, the original site 
has been discounted because of the cost due to property damage. An alternative site at Shell­
mouth is being investigated and we have not received the report on these investigations. Per­
sonally, I think that this particular project or combination of projects is extremely important 
to central and western Manitoba, not only from the standpoint of flood control but in the whole 
field of water conservation. It's a very important decision that has to be made because it's an 
easy thing to dig a trench and run the water away to the sea but you never get that water back. 
And I think we have to face the fact that if the Portage diversion were built, that it would put off 
indefinitely any hope of water conservation on the Assiniboine River. There are indications 
today that certainly during the next 50 years, possibly in the next 25 years, we are going to see 
some radical changes in agriculture in the production of special crops, and you're probably all 
aware of the fact that in the case of some special crops, in the production of tille same, there 
is a movement out of the Red River Valley, to some of lighter opinion of many others,. is that 
we must give every consideration to this decision of whether to take the dam at Holland or 
whether to construct a diversion to Manitoba. And certa inly I believe that if after consideration 
by those who are trained and have the experience, that they feel that adequate protection can be 
given to the farmers and property owners in the eastern reaches of the Assiniboine, if adequate 
protection can be given at flood time then I think we would be loath or should be loath to run 
away this water to the sea which can in years to come, be of vital importance to the economy of 
the province. 

This is a stage at which the considerations of the Assiniboine Flood O>ntrol project are at 
at the present time. We have already asked PFRA to undertake these further studies in order 
that a decision can be made, and as I say, at the present time inveEtigations are under way to 
find a location in the Shellmouth area with adequate foundatimis and which will offer adeq1,1ate 
storage with a minimum of property damage. 

MR. R. 0. LISSAMAN (Brandon): Mr. Chairman, since the Honourable Minister has 
brought up the matter of flood control on the Assiniboine River, I would like to comment on 
this. I know that-- fully well realize that the concentration of wealth and industry and people 
lie in the Greater Winnipeg area, and I can understand from that why this consideration is given 
to either the Portage diversion or the Holland Dam but I would urge the Minister to look a little 
further west and I think the Russell dam is vital to the western part of the province. Not nearly 
so much for flood control, as for conservation and maintaining a steady flow of water in the 
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(Mr. Lissaman, cont'd.) • • . . .  Assiniboine. Now I can recall that during the 1930's during the 
dry years, -�he Assiniboine River was so bare in spots you could almost walk across dry-shod 
in many places in the west, and certainly if we would have had at that time the steam stand-by 
plant that we now have at Brandon I doubt if the water Sl!pply would have maintained both the 
city and the steam stand-by plant; they use a great deal of water for cooling purposes. So I 
would urge very strongly that consideration be given to the Russell Dam or a dam somewhere 
further west near the headwaters of the Assiniboine. In my opinion it, if not absolutely neces­
sary now will in a few short years be proven absolutely necessary to the western part of the 
province as a control measure in assuring the uniform flow of water in the Assiniboine River. 
And for that purpose, I think we should consider that rather than some closer point. I can see 
the Holland Dam would give a quicker and better control in protecting the Greater Winnipeg area 
but there's a great deal to be said the the Russell site not only for the reasons I have mentioned 
but also it is a control and a protection to the Greater Winnipeg area as well. 

MR . HUTTON: Mr. Chair:rilan, I would like to assure the Honourable Member for Bran­
don that when I was speaking on the subject of water control on the Assiniboine River that the 
damsite in the Russell-Shellmouth area is an integral part of the over-all water control. There 
is no doubt in our mind about this. The decision that I re ferred to between the diversion and the 
Holland Dam, is aside from the recommendation of the Royal Commission that a dam be built 
in the Russell-Shellmouth area. 

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, I want to emphasize just by agreeing with the points 
that the Honourable the Minister has made, and that is that we 're very fortunate in this parti­
cular ,that water control and water conservation are identical so far as the dam�s are concerned .:._ 

and I didn't at all understand the �inister to infer -- I'm sure he didn't mean to -- that the 
building of the Holland Dam in any way washed out the plan to build the Russell Dam. Either or 
both can be proceeded with. I certainly agree with him also, that as between the two and of 
course providing that it's feasible and economically feasible to build the Holland Dam, as be­
tween the two that it is much preferable to the so-called Portage la Prairie diversion. I agree 
with him completely that when you hasten the disappearance of water, you're avoiding the 
flooding factor but water conservation is mightyimportant in this province as well. Mr. Chair­
man, the one further· question I want to ask in this particular regard of the Minister is, what 
are the relative capacities estimated for the Holland and Russell Dam? I think the Minister 
gave the estimated capacity of Holland -- I've forgotten what it was for Russell. 

MR . HUTTON: Well this will depend entirely upon the site. As I said for all good 
purposes they have had to discount the idea of the original site at Russell and they are now in­
vestigating the possibilities for another site further upstream and until the report comes in, I 
wouldn't have any idea as to the capacity as compared to the Holland Dam although I would sug­
gest that it would be much less. 

MR. CAMPBELL: That the Holland one would be much less? 
MR . HUTTON: No, the Holland would be much larger. 
MR . CAMPBELL: Did the-Minister, Mr. Chairman, give the figure of 600,000 acre 

feet for Holland? 
MR . HUTTON: We had originally had hoped for a much larger dam but the sof!s are such 

that they couldn't get adequate foundations to hold a larger body of water, and because of the 
fact that you have many communities doWn stream, it was determined as inadvisable to attempt 
to build a dam of any larger capacity. 

MRS. THELMA FORBES (Cypress): Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask the Minister if 
he could tell us just where the Holland Dam might be located -- does he know?· · 

MR. HUTTON: If I am not mistaken, it's about a mile and a· half west of the bridge on 
the No.34 highway. At ariy rate, it's just a short distance west of the present No.34 highway. 

MR . CHAIRMAN: • • • • • •  passed. Item 6. 
MR. GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, yesterday when the Minister of Agriculture in­

formed us about the structure on the Fairford River I, as well as the many people around Lake 
Manitoba, was extremely pleased with the announcement because it was of extreme importance 
to them. Because of its importance, r would like for purposes of clarif�cation if the Minister 
w ould be kind enough just to answer me a few questions I have in regard to this matter. 1. Yes­
terday, he said that they were holding $448, 000 towards too· • • • • . • .  
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MR. HUTTON: $480,000. 
MR. GUTTORMSON: I beg your pardon $480,000 toward this project and in answer to 

the Member for Ste. Rose he said that the total expenditure expected would 0e in the neighbour­
hood of $1,100,000. Is the complete project expected to be completed within one year? Anoth­
er question: When will the work start on the dredging; when will the work start on the bridge? 
Could the Minister indicate those answers please and if it's expected they'll be finished this 
year, why will further monies be voted at the next session? 

MR. HUTTON : It is not expected to be finished this year. We expect to begin construc­
tion, or we hope to begin construction by the middle of the summer. As to the timing of the 
control structure, I can't give you that at the present time • 

MR . GUTTORMSON: When you say you expect to start construction-- do you mean the 
control structure, or the dredging? 

MR . HUTTON: I'm not aware of which construction will begin first. I'm only aware of 
the fact that they hope to begin the construction of the project by the middle of the summer. 

MR . CHAIRMAN: 6 • • • • • •  

MR. G. MOLGAT (Ste. Rose): Mr. Chair:man, before we leave Item 5 I would just �ike 
to get some clarification from the Minister on this subject. Now on a number of occasions, I 
have said that my friends opposite are very keen on the publicity and the advertising of such' 
projects and that's frankly what scares me on this one. I just can't understand what's up, Mr. 
Chairman, because here is what I consider to be a major project on this diversion of Lake 
Manitoba;· and the improvements to the channels of the Fairford and yet I have seen no publicity 
for my friends, no fanfare of trumpets, no propaganda sheets going out from my honourable 
friend's department or anything of the sort and I can't understand what's going on. It leads me 
to wonder what is up in this respect so I would just like to make sure that we _understand each 
other as to what the department proposes to do. As I recall and I have here the report of .the 
Lakes Winnipeg and Manitoba Board; they spoke then of a total expenditure of a million six; 
that was 1,480, 000 for excavation and 120,000 for a new con�ol dam on the Fairford. I believe 
that when they investigated this they looked at four different channels for the proposed diversion , 
and they settled on one which was given to us in figure five of this same report. Now the 
analysis, I presume, was fairly complete at that time, and the reason for choosing this parti­
cular one must have been based on engineering studies. Then the fact that they made three other 
surveys as well, would, it seems to me, indicate that this was the best one. Now I understood 
from the Minister yesterday that he expects that with a new channel different from the· one I 
presume that was given to us in figure five, that they will reduce the cost of the project from a 
million six, to a million one, if I remember correctly. Now my question is, is it absolutely-­
certain that this proposed work now will accomplish exactly the same type of regulation that 
the Lakes Winnipeg and Manitoba Board were speaking about when they made their rec.ommen­
dations? And their statement then was that this type of a channel would reduce the ranges of 

-Lake Manitoba from its natural stages which had been 810.3 to 815.8 to an artificial range of 
811.0 to 813.0 and that this particular work for a total cost of a million six would achieve that 
artificial regulation. Now , is it absolutely certain that if the government is making a change in 
the proposed work that exactly the same result will be achieved? 

MR . HUTTON: My advisors tell me that by excavating in clay rather than in rock that 
they can save this sum of money and that they can construct a project which will accomplish 
exactly the same as the original recommendation. I might say that the rock underlay in that 
area tapers off quite steeply from the present riverbed and that rather than enlarging the pre­
sent channel and deepening it, and by moving over and constructing an auxiliary channel, they 
can do so much cheaper and still end up with the same capacity as they would by following the 
original plan. Beyond that I can't say-- I'm not an engineer myself, but according to the in­
formation that I have been given, the Lake can be controlled between 811 and 813 following the 
plan as a result of the latest investigation. 

MR . PREFONTAL."\TE: One has to be very quick on his feet here to be able to carry on a 
discussion. I'm sorry that I was not able to carry on in time with the First Minister the ques­
tion of relief for the towns and villages in the upper valley. The First Minister told us that 
there was nothing new except the recommendation of the Royal Commission that there should 
be dikes, ring dikes around the towns and villages. I would like to ask the First Minister 
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(Mr. Prefontaine, cont•d.) • • • • •  whether he intends to proceed along with this recommendation 
and build these ring dikes around these villages in the upper valley, or if there is no program 
at all to protect these towns and villages as far as the present situation is concerned? 

MR . ROBLIN: My understanding is, Sir, that there is considerable difference of opin­
ion among the people who live in these towns as to the desirability of this form of protection. 
Certain representations have been made to me in that respect. While I must say to my friend 
quite candidly that we have got nothing in particular that I could inform the House. about at this 
moment in respect of that problem but it certainly is one that we're not losing sight. of. 

MR . GUTTORMSON: Mr. Chairman, the Minister said a while ago thathe didn't know 
whether this Fairford project would be completed this coming year or not. When the approp­
riation of $480,000 is set aside he must have -- the department must have some idea of what is 
to be completed, or why did they choose that particular figure? I mean could he indicate what 
this money is to be spent on during this next fiscal year because the total project is going to 
be one million one ? 

MR. HUTTON: I would like to make it clear that the project will not be completed in 
1960. It wbuld be hoped that it would be completed by the latter part of 1961 and I don't think 
it is any news to this assembly that you don't need the entire funds in order to start a project 
because of the fact that in all cases you pay when the work is completed, and not when it is 
begun, and this is sufficient monies to get the work underway, both the control structure and the 
excavation of the channel. And we will be back asking for more money for all these projects 
in 1961. And as far as publicity goes, I don't know of a better. organ for publicity than the 
opposition and certainly they gave it to us on other subjects in the Legislature this session and 
I expect that they will do us the honour of giving us publicity on this present project. 

MR. GUTTORMSON: On the one point the Minister said they may not be ready till the 
latter part of 1961 but we have been told by the Minister of Public Works that all stops have 
been pulled in an effort to complete the Gypsumville--Grand Rapids road next year; because 
of the power project that's being at Grand Rapids. Well this road is literally useless as far 
as highway traffic is concerned, unless that bridge is completed next year because the present 
bridge is not capable of handling highway traffic of any consequence. The bridge is very shaky; 
it's a wooden structure and it just won't stand up; s o  is there no intention to have the bridge 
structure at least completed this coming summer in order that it will be able to carry heavy 
traffic through to Grand Rapids? 

MR . MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, on this matter of Fairford diversion again. I certain­
ly don't object whatever to my honourable friends saving half a million dollars on the project, 
all the better if they can. What I can't understand though is the Lakes Winnipeg and Manitoba 
Board as I had understood it had made a thorough engineering survey of this; that they had 
examined other possibi�ities. As we all know as well there was a very considerable survey 
made of this whole area some years ago, when we were discussing the possibilities of putting 
the next power plant on the Dauphin River instead of Grand Rapids and the idea then had been 
investigated, certainly, of a diversion of the Saskatchewan River into the northern part of 
Lake Winnipegosis and then bringing the water eventually down through its normal course from 
there, down the Dauphin River. Now there has been in other words, a very complete engin­
eering investigation of this whole area; Now I'm surprised that at· this stage the government 
should find a new method of achieving the same type of thing that was planned by the Lakes 
Manitoba Board and which they investigated which apparently they didn't recommend. Now 
what has happened? Did the Lakes Manitoba Board not investigate this particular project that 
my friends have in mind? 

MR. HUTTON: I have read the report. I have a short memory and I don't want to 
comment on it, but I do know that further sub-soil investigations were carried out in which 
they discovered that the rock layer had this peculiarity of falling off very quickly from the 
existing rive.rbed and after thorough investigations they have discovered that they can construct 
a channel without working in rock or with very little work in the rock. And my understanding 
of the report is that it was recommended that in enlarging of the existing channel be carried 
out. I can't argue, Mr. Chai

.
rman, with my honourable friend from Ste. Rose, I can only 

accept the findings of the further investigations and recommend them to him as being carried 
out by my own department. I have no reason to believe that they are faulty in any way; they 
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(Mr. Hutton , cont'd. ) • • • • •  have been carried out carefully; calculations have been made -­
c areful calculations have been made and it is their recommendation that this auxi]j,ary channel 
be constructed in place of enlarging the present channel , and if in doing so ""e can achieve the 
same capacity and at the same time save ourselves a substantial sum of money. 

MR. MOLGAT: Well, Mr. Chairman, I will accept the Minister's statement . I'm sur­
p rised that this should develop at this stage . I'm certainly pleased for the province as a whole 
that this has turned out as it has and does show some saving. I will accept the Minister's state­
ment that this will do the same job and only the future will tell . Coming back to this matter 
of correspondence with Ottawa, I wonder if the Minister could indicate to us when we can ex­
pect the tabling of the correspondence that was asked for , by my honourable friend for St . 
George in this whole matter of the Lakes Manitoba works ? Has he had any reply on that ? 

MR . ROBLIN: There ' s  nothing to add to what I said to my honourable friend at the time . 
MR . J. P. TANCHAK (Emerson): Mr . Chairman, I understand we're still on five . You 

can't accuse me of saying too much because I haven't. I've been listening. Evidently it seems 
to be futile to get some kind of a satisfactory answer .  Several have· tried and we don't seem to 
be able to get it and to me it seems that it's boiling down or steaming down to a very simple 
illustration that I can ·give . If my son, probably, wanted to buy a car for the first time probably, 
and he wante d to get my permission, I'd simply say , well if think you can drive the car, go 
right ahead and you can procure the car . But what about the financing of your car, the purchase 
price of your car? And if my son told me "Oh, don't worry about it dad, as long as I get your 
permission, I'll go it alone" ;  and later on , if he did come back to me and said, "Dad, I need 
some money to finance the purchase of that car, " I would simply remind him , "My son, you 
not so long ago said that you could do it on your own . "  In other words I think that the Province 
of Manitoba, if not entirely , but partly has lost the bargaining power that it would have had if 
that statement was not made in this House that we go it alone . 

Now, I think that was discussed quite thoroughly. I'm more interested in the Red River 
Valley south of Winnipeg .  I realize that there is a greate r concentration of people as was men­
tioned before , in the City of Winnipeg and a greater concentration of industry; but at the same 
time south of us here we also have a certain amount of smaller industry and quite a few people , 
they are also Manitobans and I presume and I hope and I know it that they are good citizens of 
the Province of Manitoba; and they are seriously concerned about the lack of action as far as the 
protection for these towns . I realize -- I know that there was some objection to these ring 
dikes that were mentioned. Some of the people feel that if these ring dikes were> constructed 
and if something went wrong with these dikes the little towns would actually become a death trap 

after the water would have risen so far. But I still think that the government instead of just 
promising that "we'll keep this matte r before us , "  should actually do something to assure the 
people that there is f air reason to believe that they will be taken care of. 

There was an industry at Emerson just a year ago that was contemplating starting in the 
town; and one of the reasons -- I was on the deliberations there - - given when they decided not 
to do it -- one of the reasons was that they were afraid that if they did start something at 
Emerson, and another flood occurred as in 1950, that they might be wiped out , or there would 
be serious damage . And I think this procrastination of action tends to retard the growth of 
these towns , because they are not too sure of the future ; and when I speak of these towns , I 
speak of Emerson, the town of Emerson -- it was very hard hit in the last two floods. Prac­
tically three-quarters of the town was inundated and almost all of the business :section was in­
undated, in fact it was so bad in one hotel that all you had to do was take a canoe and instead of 
going through the door you could go through the window into the hotel . Other towns , Letellier-­
not so hard hit ; St. Je anne not quite as hard -- but even so they are concerne d about this and I 
would like to see some action . The town of Morris was very hard hit too, and I think that the 
government should consider some action there , and not simply say that we are going to keep 
this before us . I wonder if any action is contemplated or any furthe r study is being made ? It 
was mentioned that "we 're keeping this before us "-- well we are quite used to this phrase -­
"we'll give it serious consideration , "  and so on, but I don't think that is enough. 

MR . HARRY P. SHEWMAN (Morris): Mr. Chairman, the Honourable Member from 
Morris -- from Emer son I should say -- has brought up the subject of serious action , immediate 
action . There are very few members left in the House that were here during the 1950 flood; 
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(Mr . Shewman, cont•d . )  • • • • •  and when we appealed to his Leader for immediate action we 
waited a long, long time for immediate action; and the members that have been in this House 
since 1950 will remember quite well that the Leader of the Opposition was saying that they were 
giving it serious consideration; and it was through the efforts of the Opposition at that time, 
that we have got to the stage that we have gotten to today. We did ask for a Royal Commission 
to be established and investigate flood control; and I think if you will read that report that, if 
my memory serves me right, that it will take further study and a lot of planning to help the 
people in the valley yet. That Commission in their report came out with no definite policies as 
far as the Red River Valley was concerned . They did make definite recommendations what 
could be done to help Greater Winnipeg; and when the Opposition will rise in this House and say 
that we are making promises, I want the members of the Liberal Party to read the joilrnals, 
and see the resolutions that came from the Opposition at that time asking for help one way or 
another, and immediate help. It would be worth their while if they could get some of the debate 
that took place over these resolutions and such like at the House. It would be well worth their 
time to read some of the debate that took place in the House asking for immediate help . And I 
have confidence that we are studying that situation; and it's going to take a while yet; and I be­
lieve the help that is forthcoming will be a lot quicker than the help, and the promise that we 
got from the previous government. 

MR. TANCHAK: Mr. Chairman , I disagree with the Honourable Member from Emerson , 
from Morris I mean, I shouldn't disagree with myself. I made the same mistake as my honour­
able friend before when he called me the honourable friend from Morris - and I disagree with 
him , because it seems that we've been talking about the protection for the City of Winnipeg, 
and the Minister himself said that it would take maybe six years or so before anything is com­
pleted; and no mention has been made of further study of the Red River Valley beyond Rat 
River, south of Winnipeg. So I don't think there is immediate action like the Honourable Mem­
ber for Morris would like us to believe. I think he is wrong in that and as far as promises 
and so on and the action of the past government, I think it is time that we stop rehashing old 
straw. 

ASSEMBLED MEMBERS: Hear ! Hear ! 
MR . TANCHAK: We've heard ':that so often I think it's time we quit being children and say , 

"You did , "  ''You didn't" , "You did", "You didn't". I think the time is past. We should live in 
the present, not in the past. If there was any error in the past, it's our duty to see that we 
improve if there is a possible improvement. But I also disagree with him that there was no 
action. It is too late to act when actually when we are in the flood, but the government at the 
time -- had a lot to do with it, as a year ago I remember the H mourable Member from Morris 
did tell us a story here of how busy he was during the flood but he didn't live at home, he lived 
in Morris -- and I give him credit for that . I am sure he was interested in the people of 
Morris at the time -- just exactly how much he did, and what he did, I wasn't there because we 
are farther south. Although I didn't represent the people, I did all I could at the time to help 
them. But it is now, the present time that we are talking about; and the former government 
did help those people after the water had receded; and as far as I know that most of the people, 
most of the residents were satisfied with the help that they did get in that area; and that was 
immediate action. It's no use saying that when the flood is on, there is not action. There is 
very little that you can do and I know that there was help given by the government and by the 
Red Cross and by all the different governing bodies at that time -- any possible help was given 
to the people. And after the damage of the flood, the government helped to re-establish these 
people . It is false to say that nothing has been done for those people . But I am more intereated 
in the future and I know that the people of Emerson and Morris and Ste . Jeanne and Letellier 
are interested in the future to see what protection is forthcoming from the present government. 
And I'm not quarelling with what the government is doing, but I would like the government to 
indicate some action. Every time the survey has been studied -- but simply to say that we 
keep it before us -- we are seriously considering it -- I don't thin..k that is enough. 

MR . SHEWMAN: The Honourable Member from Emerson has spoken, and he makes a 
statement that he doesn't like to rehash it . Well, I don't like to rehash it myself because it has 
been rehashed and rehashed. But there is just one word of advice or cowsel that I should pass 
on to him maybe , that if he remembers a passage in the scripture where it states that "the 
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(Mr . Shewman, cont'd . )  • • • • •  sins of the forefathers shall rest until the third and fourth genera­
tion. "  I think he should take that to heart. 

MR . CAMPBELL: Mr .  Chairman ,  I must confess to be different because I do like to 
rehash things and I wasn't going to bring up the question of what happened at the time of the 
other flood. I purposely left it go in everything that I had to saY, but when my honourable 
friend the Member for Morris decides that this should be mentioned -- then I'm delighted at 
the opportunity of rehashing it, because I think there are some things that should be kept in 
front of the people, f.or it' s only"Qylooking at what happened in times of that kind that we can pre­
pare fully for the next difficulty that we might encounter .  

Now the Honourable Member for Morris says that - - referring t o  the Member for Emerson 
that what his Leader did or neglected to do at the time ofthe other flaxl . N:ba:ly in heie recently, Mr . 

Chairman , has given sufficient attention to the fact of who was in charge of flood preparations 
at the time of the other flood.  It was the then minister of Public Works , the immediate pre­
decessor of my honourable friend who sits over here now , and I can -- I didn't bring this 
material to the House , because I didn't know that this was coming up -- but I can bring if the 
Committee is willing to let this matter stand, I can bring to this House the verbatim statement 
taken off the record, of where the then Minister of Public Works stood up in his place in the 
House when asked about the likelihood of a flood and gave a glowing account of all the prepara­
tions that were being made , and that we were ready for one, and he continued to say that all the 
time. Now when my honourable friend, the Member for Morris wants to incriminate me into 
this discussion -- in this discussion -- and I have no objection, not the least; and I have to take 
my share of responsibility but I want him to be just fair and reasonable enough to remember that 
the man who admitted that he was in charge of preparations; and admitted it even after the 
flood was over; and admitted it even when he used that as part of the reason for which he was 
leaving the coalition, admitted on all those occasions that he was in charge of the flood prepa­
rations . I would just love to have the opportunity to bring into this House and read the state­
ments that he made to the House about how ready we were to meet a flood at that time . Now 
my honourable friend wants to blame me for it, so I am delighted to rehash it and let's get the 
responsibility where it belongs . And I am more than happy to bring in the actual verbatim 
document in that regard. I didn't bring it with me because I wasn't intending to raise this . 
My honourable friend should have know better than to raise it, because we did have a word from 
my honourable friend, too • .  He was occupying the exalted position of Mayor of Morris at that 
time, and he made some contribution because I received a communication from my honourable 
friend, and do you know what the communication was? Right when the flood was in -- not per­
haps at its worst but when it was very serious , I got a communication from the honourable 
member in his capacity as Mayor of the Town of Morris , and what was he asking? He was 
asking that we should get in touch with the Federal Government to see that the people got an 
extension in filing their Income Tax Returns. Well did you ever hear of anything more ridicu­
lous than that, at the time that this province was fighting for its life , or this area,  fighting for 
its life in the flood? And I replied to it as I replied to every one of the other recommendations 
that came to me in those times .  Our first job is to look after the lives of the people , that's the 
first job and every effort by everybody is being made to do that, look after the lives of the people 
first. Secondly , the property of the people . When those things have been done we will talk 
about , I don't think I even mentioned Income Tax, but we will talk about the restoration of pro­
perty after that. Do what we can first to safeguard the lives of the peopl e ,  and there was a good 
job done on that, I am not taking any credit but the people who were in charge of it deserve 
credit for the job that was done in that regard. And then safeguard the property, particularly 
the livestock, and moveable property, and property that -- insofar as possible, the real est­
ate· as well. Do what little could be done in regard to it, too .  And when I got appeals, and 
no wonder I became distinctly unpopular on that occasion, because when I got appeals about 
these other things , about people -- and we had them from lots of mayors and municipalities ,  
when we got appeals that "what we re we going to do ? "  in the way o f  restoring the people's pro­
perty and paying them compensation, and all this sort of thing I replied at all times , "We'll 

talk about that when the danger of the flood is over . The first thing to do is to look after the 
people's lives and their property, and we'll talk about that afterwards . "  And at that time , Mr. 
Chairman, the estimates of the likely damage of that flood were being quoted in the pape;rs of 
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(Mr. Campbell , cont' d . )  • • •  the day and by competent assessors as perhaps running to the hun­
dred million. Some had them as high as three hundred million. But I say competent assessors , 
competent judgment had them as high as a hundred million dollar s .  And my honourable friend 
and other people, many other people , many municipal people wanted me to give an undertaking 
as head of the Government of that day, a blanket undertaking, that we would compensate every­
body for all damage . And we said "No , sir, no, sir. We'll pledge every dollar that we bave or 
that we can get hold of, in looking after the lives of the people while the flood is on and their 
property as well ,  but as far as pledging the resources of thi s  province alone to take care of all 
the losses that would result, no sir . "  And even though I, at one time had in the office around 
here, the representatives of 14 or 15 municipalities,  we continued to say "no, sir . "  And, Mr. 
Chairman, there is just one main reason, just one main reason why we were able to get as good 
a settlement as we did, ouf of Ottawa at that time was because the Ottawa House was in session. 
If it hadn't been in session at that time , where this matter was brought up day, after day , after 
day, and where the government was reminded of it almost constantly, I don't think that we would 
have received the very generous treatment that we finally got so far as compensation was concern­
ed . And it was a good settlement as the Honourable Member for Emerson has said, it was very 
satisfactory in general so far as compensation for losses . But everybody knows that no money, 
no money can compensate for the heartbreak, and the loss of sleep, the worry of the situation of 
that kind. And goodness knows, nobody wants to see that occur again. That wasn't compensated 
for, and the reason that it is important now to go the distance of trying to relieve people ,  relieve 
people 's minds of the likelihood of that kind of thing occurring again. The reason that -- even 
holding the views that I do -- that I am still willing to see a lot of money expended for insurance , 
so that the public will have a right to feel that even under the worst of circumstances that kind of 
thing can't come again, can't happen again, is because I realize the terrible mental, and in some 
cases physical , anguish that people went through in addition to the monetary losses . Now I have 
no hesitation in discussing this at any time . I think it' s advantageous that these things be said 
once in a while , and when my Honourable friend from Morris tries to blame me , once again as 
I have been blametl many time s before , and I am quite willing to take my share of responsibility. 
I had a lot of responsibility and I am sorry, I am very, very sorry that we weren't better prepar­
ed than we were . Certainly I've got to take my share of responsibility for not being prepared, as 
well as we should have been . But I'd be delighted to read the statement of the Minister of Public 
Works of that day , and he said we were ready and we were in good shape and he didn't have any 
doubts on the matter at all . And I am sure I still have that statement , I am not certain that I 
still have the wire that I received from my honourable friend, then Mayor of Morris . If I have 
it I'd be glad to • • •  

MR . SHEWMAN: I think I have it. 
MR. CAMPBELL : Well , I'd be glad to have my honourable friend read it because I think 

it's a most interesting document. 
MR. SHEWMAN: Mr. Chairman ,  I always enjoy the Leader of the Opposition, and espe­

cially when he gets a little red in the face . Now it's very few times that he does , but if you hap­
pen to mention flood he does . And I would just like to rehash a little of this , this afternoon if I 
could just have the time . And I can remember quite well during this House , I think it was the 
14th of April , during this House to discuss this problem of the flood in 1950 . We had a flood in 
the valley in 1948 and we app6aled to the then Government of Manitoba for some help . We did 
get $800 from the Department of Public Works to repair sidewalks and streets that were damaged 
in the flood of 1948 . In the Fraser River Valley in 1948 they had a flood. The then Premier 
Johnson of British Columbia, if memory serves me right , I think it was on the 23rd of May that 
year that he took a plane to Ottawa and was back before the first of June with a cheque of 
$ 6 ,  000 , 000 to help the people evacuate out of that Fraser River V alley flood with a promise from 
the Federal Government that more money was coming if necessary. Now I think my memory is 
right in this point, I don't remember at any time during the stages of our flood in 1950 , of the 
then Premier of this province making any appeal to Ottawa for help of any kind. I don't remem­
ber. Then, yes ,  • • • . • .  the Income Tax, you bet and we needed help in the very worst way after 
two floods . And I remember quite well , the British.Columbia Government establishing a fund 
and putting·$100 , 000 into it, as a relief fund and they appealed to the people of Canada for help 
and the British Columbia Government put $100, 000 into the fund to start it off, that's all , just to 

Page 1680 March 17th, 1960 



(Mr . Shewman, cont'd. ) • • •  start the fund rolling. I don't remember of any such action here 
in Manitoba. And wren the Leader of the Opposition said he felt for the people, I think he did, 
I'll give him credit for that. He is human like the rest of us . You've got to feel sometimes, 
there':;; no two ways about that, you have to feel . Then when he mentions the fact that the first 
job wa:;; to look after the people . I hope that he will give me credit for appealing to the govern­
ment at that time asking for transportation for the people that were in the flooded area that didn't 
have the money to pay their own transportation out of the flooded district. I appealed to the gov­
el'!liilent for that kind of help, and the answer was "no" . - Maybe that's why he means no, that he 
wa�>n't doing anything, I am not quite sure on that point. And I remember taking 12 hours to 
come from Morris to Winnipeg to appeal to the government , the Minister of Agriculture at that 
tiJ:p.e was Mr . Bell , the Honourable Mr . Bell , appealing to the government to get some help to 
build some barges so we could rescue livestock and get them out. The answer was "no " .  Now 
I don't know what you'd call help, or what you were trying to do to save lives and to save pro­
perty, when the answer was "no" all the time . We had farme rs out there that had some of the 
best dairy cows in the Province of Manitoba, and after a heavy season, the winter season of 
milking these cows were thin, they weren't in marketable condition. We asked the government 
at that time to do something so these farmers could ship these cattle out someplace and look 
after them until the flood period was over . The answer was "no" .  And these farmers shipped 
these cattle to the stockyards and sold them , sacrificed them on account of the condition they 
were in. Now do you spell that kind of help with a small "h" or a capital "H"? I don't know 
just how you spell that kind of help. 

MR . GUTTORMSON : Who was the auctioneer? 
MR . SHEWMAN: A fair question but not a very intelligent one . Now, I don't want to 

:misinterpret the Leader of the Opposition, I give him credit. When public opinion forced him 
into moving , he moved. I wouldn't want to say the word "reluctantly" ,  because I'm just not quite 
sure what that means, but it wasn't a very speedy·movement in any manner or sense . Then he 
talks about the people being satisfied. Yes the people were satisfied, and I wouldn't want to take 
any credit away from him that the people are satisfied,  but there's a lot of aspects comes into 
this picture . He doesn't mention the fact that throughout the world there was nine million dol­
lars donated to the Red River Relief Fund, and the money that bought these cows and helped the 
storekeeper and that kind of thing, came from the Manitoba Relief Fund. And the picture that 
they had in British Columbia in their 1948 flood, that the BC Govel'!liilent said right shortly af­
ter the 1st or 2nd of June: "Take your cattle out, we will feed them; send enough lads along 
with your dairy cows to milk them ; we'll market the milk and we'll settle the proceeds on a 
pro-rata basis per number of dairy cows that each farmer had . " They supplied feed for 30 
days aiter the flood was over,  in some cases 60 days, and after 60 days, for the next 60 days 
they shipped fodder,  feed into the Province of British Columbia and gave them 25% reduction 
on the cost of that feed. I think the Honourable Leader of the Opposition -- I hope I'm refresh­
ing his memory, he will remember that. And all along the line there was that wo rd that I used 
at that time that I swore I would never use again , and I don't intend to do it -- the callous in-­
difference that that government showed towards the people of the Red River Valley at that time . 
Now we could go on and as far as rehashing, the Leader of the Opposition charged me when he 
mentions the group that he had in from the municipality, charged me to debate that question . 
Well it was the first session that I had had in the House and the Premier of the province was 
noted for his debating qualities -- and he's still noted. I kind of withdrew but I'd love to debate 
it with him. I'd love to debate this que stion any place where he chooses the spot. I'd just love 
to debate that que stion with him . So when he talks about rehashing -- I'd love to rehash it too 
-- I'd love to rehash it. 

The people of the Red River Valley still remember the 1950 flood, and when the Premier 
of the province today tells me that we are giving this serious consideration, I believe him , just 
the same as I believed the Premier of then in 1950 -- up to a point -- up to a point. -- (Inter­
jection) -- The Premier -- then up to a point -- when he refused to help . Well you can make 
the speech after .  Yes ,  you can, oh certainly that's a privilege . And then it was the outside 
help that helped us . When these farmers were shipping the cattle out as I mentioned before , 
they were sacrificing them, and I think it was sometime in July possibly, around the 16th of 
July if I remember, before the Premier-then of the province,  made any statement as to what 
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(Mr . Shewman, cont'd . )  • • .  help the people of the Red River Valley could expect to get. Now I 
don't want to rehash this, but I'm not going to back away from it because facts are facts and we 
can 1t deny them . 

MR . CAMPBELL: Mr . Chairman, I can't deny them , eh? Well I'm delighted to hear 
that. I do deny them. I deny the vast majority of what my honourable friend said, because he 
started off with the first one that he doesn't remember any appeal to Ottawa. What nonsense ,  
Mr. Chairman. He knows that there was an appeal to Ottawa immediately, immediately that 

·this situation was admitted to be out of hand of the provincial authorities. He knows that, sure­
ly. He says that he thinks he'll refresh my memory. Well I must refresh his , because what a 
lot of people had been suggesting to me was that I should declare this, and people continued to 
press this , that I should declare this as a national emergency. I kept telling that only Ottawa 
c an  declare a national emergency and the moment that it got out of hand here -- up to that time 
I had been assured as the public was assured by the then-Minister of Public Works that we were 
able to take care of it -- and when we found that we couldn't and the Deputy Minister of Public 
Works will remember that he and I were over here along the dykes that were abuilding in st. 
Boniface right near the hospital there , on that night that it continued to rain; we thought things 
were pretty bad; we could see that some of these areas were losing the fight on the dykes ;  we 
came back and at something like 2 :00 o'clock in the morning we called the army in and asked 
them to take over . And immediately then, immediately at that time , the appeal went to Ottawa 
to declare it a national emergency and to place the forces at our disposal and to prepare to give 
financial assistance. And the honourable member says he doesn't remember that. Well he 
wasn't very close to the situation, Mr. Chairman, if he doesn't remember that. And then he 
says that out in BC there was a fund to which the Government of Manitoba subscribed. 

MR . SHEWMAN: No . The Columbia Government put $100 , 000 into their own provincial 
fund. 

MR. CAMPBELL: • . • •  to which the government of that province subscribed. Well does 
he not remember that the Government of the Province of Manitoba subscribed to the one here . 
-- (Interjection) -- No , no, no. As soon as the fund was started. They subscribed to the one 
here, and it was a great fund, and it did a good job and he says that the majority of the work 
was done there . He quotes it as nine million dollars .  I don't remember the exact amount, but 
the Province of Manitoba and the Federal Government between them spent pretty nearly 20 mil­
lion dollars in that flood. And I don't ask the House to take the memory of either one of the 
Honourable Member for Morris or me on this matter . I suggest that you, Mr. Chairman, ask 
the Minister of AgricUlture to find out from the Department of Agriculture officials what was 
done . Ask the Department of Agriculture officials ,  because long before ,  even when the Minister 
of Public Works was assuring us that everything was all right, we were in receipt or the Depart­
ment of Agriculture was in receipt of some . • • • .  

MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Chairman on a point of order, I'm rather reluctant to do this , but 
I think that it would be better, all things considered, if my honourable friend vvould not refer to 
the former Minister of Pa blic Works for reasons with which he will be aware . I was holding 
my piece here in hopes that perhaps that point would appeal to him without my bringing it up and 
perhaps we would be able to avoid it. I would suggest that he will recognize that he will have to 
take the responsibility for the acts of his Ministers and his government, just as I do in respect 
of my Ministers here , and in all fairness I think we should avoid mentioning that. My honourable 
friend has his opinions -- I know they're very strongly held -- I wouldn't try to dissuade him 
from them but I appeal to him to refrain from that. 

MR. CAMPBELL : Mr . Chairman, there's no point of order here . I'm simply telling the 
facts about what happened ,  and the fact -- I don't have to depend on my own memory . I promise 
to bring the com�ittee the verbatim statement ta.�en off the record here . There 's no question 
about that, and there's no point of order at all. The Honourable Member from Morris tried to 
raise the question of the flood and what was done in order to embarrass the Honourable Member 
for Emerson by saying that his Leader had not done this, that and the othe r thing. 

lVIR , SHEWMAN: On a point of order • . • • •  

MR . CAMPBELL: He tried to msinuate that I didn't want to discuss this matter of the 
flood. He said- my face gets very red when we talk about the flood. Well there's nothing against 
a fellow's face gett ing red in this House or else s.ome other people besides I would probably come 
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(Mr. Campbell, cont'd. ) • • •  in for some criticism once in a while. He tried to que stion the 
job that I did. I admit it was not perfect; I admit we were not ready and I simply give the fact 
and it is the fact that the Minister of Public Works .of that day had assured this House that every­
thing was in order and that we were ready for the situation·. And even while he was so assuring 
this House, the Department of Agriculture people were down in the valley making arrangements 
about the moving of livestock, and he can ask the Minister of Agriculture to check that with de­
partmental officials and he'll find that that was the fact. And the minute tha± it was necessary 
to move them , the minute that the flood got to be a real problem -- we didn't need money from 
Ottawa because all the resources of the Provincial Government here were made available and 
there was no lack of money to do any of these things . And barges were provided, barges were 
provided and livestock was moved and the Department of Agriculture officials , aided and 

abetted by a lot of people , the RCMP and the Red Cross and many others, did an excellent job 
in that regar d .  And my honourable friend apparently doesn't remember that help was given on 
that transportation . Then he says it was public opinion that forced me to do something. Well 
it was the fact that -- we were not holding back any money from that kind of work, but what we 
did refuse to do was pledge ourselves until we got a commitment from Ottawa that we were go­
ing to underwrite all the cost of that flood, which as I said before , was being estimated by com­
petent people , as high as 100 million dollars , and by some othe r people as high as 300 million. 

And just in passing and in closing, unless my honourable friend wants to continue this 
discussion, I want to say this , that the marvelous job of organization that my honourable friend 
did as Mayor of Morris resulted in the fact that while the farmers around the area got their 
livestock out in very good shape -- it's true some of them marketed them -- bu!t they knew they 
could have got feed if they wanted it. It's true that some of them marketed them rather than go 
through all the trouble that they would have to engage in, but while they were doing that with 
great help on the part of the Department of Agriculture , while they were doing that, the Honour­
able the Mayor of Morris had things in such excellent shape that a great majority, I think, of 
the c·ars o£ the people of Morris were caught there right in the town. He didn't even get the auto­
mobiles out of the town of Morris . They were sitting right around there covered up with water. 
That was his organization job. 

MR . SHEWMAN: Mr . Chairman • • . . • •  

MR . ROBLIN: I would ask my honourable friend to make this very shozt ,  because my 
honour able friends have agreed they're willing to discuss this in any forum . P·erhaps we've had 
enough of it in this forum today and they could carry on someplace else . 

MR . SHEWMAN: There's only one or two pointe! want to raise. The Leader of the Oppo­
sition accuses me of starting this debate this after mon . I think he'll read off Hansard where the 
Honour able Member from Emerson threw the first ball. I think that's a fact, that we can't deny 
that , and when he mentions the fact that the Department of Agriculture were doing everything 
they could, I would ask him to state when the Department of Agriculture started to move live­
stock. It was through the efforts of the boys at Morris and at St. Jean that built these barges .  
And where did we get that lumber ? 

. • • • •  continued on next page . 
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MR . CA:MPBELL: • . . • • • •  I think I would want to agree with that last statement of my 
honourable friend that I think the people of the valley still do remember the flood and that's 
the one thing he said today that I can agree with. 

MR . TANCHAK: . • . . . . . • . • •  since the Honourable Member from Emerson says I started 
this debate I'd like -- from Morris -- says that I started this debate, maybe the First Minister: 
would give me the permission to close it, and I hope it will close . I do not feel . . .  

' 

MR . CHAIRMAN: Should we consider it closed now? We passed No . 5 and we'll keep 
on . . . . .  

MR . TANCHAK: I'll be very short, just one minute . I don't feel that I started this debate . 
I didn't mention the Honourable Member of Morris . I didn't mention anything . I simply spoke 
for the people who have asked for help and I didn't intend to b:ring the Honourable Member of 
Morris into this debate whatsoever . 

MR . CHAIRMAN: . . . . .  passed. 
MR. HUTTON: Mr. Chairman, . . • . . . . • • . . • • .  agricultural research 6 .  I would like to 

s ay a few words on this item . A year ago , not a year ago but last session, $800, 000 was 
voted for agricultural research. Of that amount $200 , 000 was made use of, which left a 
carry-over of $600 , 000.. In addition to the $800, 000 that was voted, there was an item of 
$87 , 695 which was used by the university to purchase and construct equipment in connection 
with the research program; and of the $87 , 695 during the past year, they have used it in the 
following ways: in agricultural engineering they used $13, 000 in developing and equipping a 
laboratory for the study of farm machinery lubricants; in animal science they used $25, 900 
as part payment towards the erection and equipment of a grain elevator and feed mixing plant; 
in plant science they used $44 , 495 for special experimental 'equipment for breeding and quality 
studies in field crops,  amongst which are special growth chambers for plant research; in 
soil science they used $4, 300 for transportation equipment and costs for soil fertility studies 
in country tests . Now of the $200, 000 that they made use of in 1959-60 $135, 000 went into the 
new Poultry Nutrition Building; $15, 400 went into the Poultry Equipment Building; $3, 500 went 
i nto the new sheep barn; $35, 600 went into the feed mill and equipment; and $35, 000 was used 
in services to the new agricultural areas, that is, the e"-tension of water lines, sewage lines,  
heat lines and so forth. In addition to the monies made available to them through the Dep�rt­
ment of Agriculture they used-monies made available through the grants through the Department 
of Education . 

--

Now in the coming year, there are two major projects under way. The first is a crop 
research centre which is a wing to the existing plant science building, which will be constructed 
at an estimated cost of $600 , 000 . Now it is hoped that this buildi.i'lg will be completed before 
March 31st, 196 1 .  The other major, -- I shouldn't say other major, because it's a much 
larger underta.kll)g -- is the construction of a new animal science building which is estimated 
to cost $1, 900, 000 . This will offer research facilities in the fields of nutrition, animal physio­
logy, animal genetics , It will also offer facilities for research in entomology, with emphasis 
on physiology, taxonomy, control and the management of injurious and beneficial insects . They 
have needed new facilities for animal science at the university for some time . This will per­
mit them to extend the general field of research and give the farmers of this province the 
benefits of such work at a time when we are turning more and more to the production of live­
stock. 

Now there are other programs contemplated over the next few years and among them are 
a new swine research barn, dairy barn, poultry confining unit, and the looking forward, look­
ing ahead of the establishment of a new university farm . But for t.lrls coming year, the two big 
projects designated are the new plant research building and the new animal science building . 

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr .  Chairman, I am really wondering if I caught the Minister's words 
properly . Did he say that out of the amount voted last year that only $200, 000 had been spent? 

MR. HUTTON: . • . . . . • . . . . . .  available for 1960-61 . 
MR. CAMPBE LL: That is including this vote ? 
MR . HUTTON : Yes . 
MR . CAMPBELL: Including this vote . Mr. Chairman, the Honourable the Member for 

Morris accused me of my face getting a little bit red at times and I think if there was anything 
that would make my face get a little bit red, it would be a statement of this kind for which again 
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(Mr . Campbell, cont'd) . • • •  I certainly do not blame the present Minister .  But it would be 
arising· from the fact that the Minister when these capital estimates were voted last year, 
gave a figure as I took it down of $937 , 635 for agricultural research; and then we find that 
$200,  000 has been used. Now, Mr .  Chairman, I would like to know how the government 
possibly justifies a situation of that kind, of asking for that much money, pretending that they 
had a program for it, and then finding that they spend less than one-quarter of it. I have no 
complaint whatever of the work that is proposed to be done, but I certainly have a complaint 
on the fact that $700, 000 or thereabouts of that money was unexpended, if that is the situation. 

MR. ROBIJN : Mr . Chairman, I don't think my honourable friend will maintain his critic­
ism if he reflects on the history and the fact of what happened. He will be aware, I' m sure, 
that this estimate was prepared for the session a year ago now but it was -- the plan was 
proposed and the amount decided on - but when was the money voted? Well, it was voted on 
August 4th of last year . We had a general election in between and we carried on with the 
same program but we couldn't start in the sense that we would like to have started until the 
m oney was voted. Now that surely explains it, a good deal of the difficulty, to my honourable 
friend. 

MR. CA.'i\IIPBELL: It doesn't explain it, Mr . Chairman, for the simple reason that the 
vote should have been revised at the second time or else the other thing should have been done 
that the interim supply that was voted should have included enough to have gone ahead with 
these projects . It certainly does not explain it. 

MR . ROBIJN: I don't think that my honourable friend really thinks that interim supply 
under the circumstances of last March should have been - included capital item . I don't 
think that he would have done it himself had he been over here . 

MR. CAMP BELL: I'd have no objection to it being done, Mr . Chairman, lbecause the 
position taken by my honourable friend the Leader of the House and certainly by the then 
Minister of Agriculture was that this agricultural research was urgently needed and that they 
were going to do it and going to do it in a much bigger way than had been done up to that time . 
The money was needed and so they voted. And the fact is, we vote $937 , 000 odd and we find 
that $200, 000 has been expended. 

MR . :HUTTON: Mr .  Chairman, the government undertook, or gave an undertaking to the 
university to make this money available . It takes time to plan buildings of this kind. There 
wasn't very much good weather in which these plans could be undertaken, especially in the 
late fall, and for that reason and because of the delay in planning the construction wasn't 
undertaken at that time but I am sure that any thinking person realizes that it does take time 
to get plans of this magnitude underway and that before any responsible person would under­
take them , that they would wait for authorization of this Legislature . And if my memory isn •t 
too bad, that we had quite a lit'"tle fuss in this Legislature, because of the fact that it was 
charged that this Legislature had been treated with less than courtesy. Here we are charged 
on the other hand of asking the Legislative Assembly of Manitoba, away in advance for commit­
ments io do works that are needed in the province . Now, I just can't understand the line of 
thinking of the Honourable Leader of the Opposition . Certainly we're asking for money ahead 
of time . I, as Minister of Agriculture ,  carmot give you an undertaking as to just when this 
work will be undertaken. There are factors over which we have no control .  But certainly it 
is an act of good faith on our part that we undertake to vote monies and make them available 
to the interested parties in order that they can go ahead removing the uncertainty at least, of 
monies that will be made available . At least that one factor of uncertainty can be removed. 
It doesn't remove the uncertainty of factors over which we of the Government, and myself as 
the Minister of Agriculture have no control. And in asking for authorization for this sum of 
money for the works in the coming year I cannot give an undertaking for factors over which I 
myself� as Minister of the Government, or the University may have no control . We are asking 
authorization of a sum of money to undertake projects which-are planned and where the plans 
are underway and beyond that we can give no further undertaking . 

MR. CAMPBELL: Can I take my honourable friend' s word for that completely, and I am 
aware of those factors and I am not blaming my honourable friend . I'm blaming the govern­
ment of the day, because I've said it before, I repeat it now, I'll be saying it again, that at 
the time that those estimates were presented that we pointed out -- I don't know that we did in 
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(Mr .  Campbell, cont' d) . . • .  this one specifically but we did with regard to a lot of the estimates,  
the road program for one, and with some others, we pointed out that the· government of the 
day was bUilding up big estimates , laying before the House plans that they were not likely to 
implement; that they were laying them before the House in order to create the impression in 
the province that they were -- that they had a fine program ready to be implemented. _ And 
my honourable friend, the Minister, in his honesty, and I give him credit for his honesty and 
I do because I think he's m aking a sincere endeavour to do this job -- but in his honesty he 
said just now that they had told the University that they would have this money available . And 
I am sure that• s just exactly what happened, that the government of the day suggested to the 
University -- we'll have money available to you -- and the University didn't even have the 
program laid out at that time .  The government wanted to present a program to the Province 
of Manitoba to indicate that it had a huge agricultural research program that was going to do a 
fine job for the province, and the fact is with $937, 000 odd voted they spend $200, 000 . I am 
not blaming the present Minister . I know the position he was put in -- the same one that the 
Minister of Highways is put in -- and I am not objecting to this . I am simply making my 
observations on the reason that so little was spent . And of course he hasn't control over the 
kind of weather that we might have, or building conditions or anything of this kind. He expects 
to get the first one of these done within a year . Well, that• s all right . That might run into 
some difficulties too, but at least he presents an intelligent program to us . 

MR . CHAIRMAN: 6 .  Passed . Section 2 Other Requirements, Highways, etc . Passed. 
MR. THOMPSON : Mr . Chairman, I would like to begin at_ the beginning, which is the 

occasion when the present administration assumed office . I know that honourable members 
are interested in the present figure of 20 million which you are asked to authorize and I would 
like to give the breakdown of available revenue and actual expenditures from the first of July 
158 until the present time .  

When we assumed office at the end of June '58 there existed a carry-over of $22 , 900, 692 
for road construction . That figure represents the unused appropriation for road building as 
of that date . (Interjection) $22, 900, 692 . In the fall session of '58 as we all know there was 
voted the sum of $33 million . The expenditure during that portion of the fiscal year ' 58-9 , 
which was under the control of the present administration amounted to $17 , 828, 492 . So that 
as of April 1 ,  1959 there was an authorized carry-over of $37, 181, 200 . In the summer 
session of '59 the sum voted was $19 , 381, 500 . The expenditure for the year ' 59-' 60,  the 
year just closing in a couple of weeks, is $29, 557, 700, that is the provincial expenditure, 
the amount of provincial monies expended, actually expended for road construction . So that 
the estimated carry-over as of the end of this month is $27 , 005, 000 . The estimated net 
expenditure for the coming fiscal year is $28, 146, 964 . That, I say again, is the estimated net 
expenditure of provincial m oney. So that the estimated carry-over as at the end of the coming 
fiscal year, will be $18, 858, 036 . That will be the estimated carry-over after and if this vote 
of 20 million which you are now asked to approve, iS approved .  

Now, in referring t o  those figures I mentioned the actual provincial expenditure in each 
of the fiscal ye ars . The first was a portion of the ' 58-9 year, over which this administration 
had control . I quoted the provincial expenditure . I'd like to give the total which includes the 
amounts recoverable from other jurisdictions, mainly the Federal Government . The actual 
expenditure the year ending '59 was $20, 535, 765 in the period July 1 '58 to March 31st, '59 . 
The actual expenditure April 1 '59 to March 31 '60 is estimated to be $32, 857 , 700 and as given 
earlier,  the estimated expenditure for the coming fiscal year, the total estimated expenditure 
is $33 , 856 , 964 .  So it simply means this, that of the 20 million which is now before us , for 
the coming fiscal year we will actually need only about 1 .  3 million dollars . But in accordance 
with our policy of planning ahead and in accordance with the e stablished progressive policy of 
road construction, we are asking for this carry-over for the fiscal year following in order that 
during the coming fiscal year, it may be possible to plan -roads and advertise and so on and 
prepare the construction for the year which. follows . And so that is the reason for the 20-million 
dollar appropriation which is before us·. 

MR. MOLGAT: Mr . Chairman, what I am trying to reconcile here are the figures that 
were given out in the publicity sheet of March 11th, when -- it reads :"45 , 600, 000 Highways 
Program "· How --- yes what is the relationship ? 
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MR. THOMPSON : Yes, that includes the current estimate of 14 million . They have 
included the estimate which we passed in current estimates a few days ago . 

MR. PREFONTAINE: Mr . Chairman, I am sorry I wasn't here when this -·- when the 
road program was discussed the other night . I would just like to ask the Minister why two 
main projects that have been announced last July in the constituency of Carillon are not in­
cluded in this year's program . They are important projects . They have been approved and 
announced in this House and I see that they are not included in this year's program . I would 
like to know the reasons why they were not included, like the paving of 52 highway. I know 
there is 200 yards that is not ready to be paved but the rest seems to be in good shape and 
ready;and the reconstruction job on 23 east, of 17 miles.  All of it is not absolutely possibly 
necessary to be done this year, but there is 5 1/2 miles of it where it should be done; it 
should have been done sooner . There is a drainage problem involved and I would address the 
Minister in order to ask him whether it would be possible to add at least 5 1/2 miles to his 
present program which affects my constituency, in view especially of the fact that the two 
main jobs as passed last July are not included in this year's program . 

MR . ROBLIN : Mr . Chairman, I wonder if we should proceed along that line of discussion 
because I think our general understanding was that that concluded that particular discussion 
because the explanations are all in Hansard and that we should restrict ourselves to the capital 
items concerned. 

MR. RUSSELL PAULLEY ( Leader of the CCF) (Radisson) : Mr . Chairman, do I under­
stand from the Minister that, I think this is what he said, that at the end of the :fiscal year 
that we're about to enter into, that we're going to have a carry-over of some 18 1/2 millions 
of dollars • I think that was the figure that he gave to us . (Interjection) . Yes; end of the 
coming fiscal year, that we're going to have a carry-over on the books of 18 1/2 millions oL� , 
dollars .  I think the Minister said that one of the reasons for that is to enable them to plan 
for the program for the fiscal year starting a year from the end of March of this year . I 
wonder wey it' s necessary to have a carry-over in order to do that. Is it not feasible or 
p ossible to still have the program planned for two years hence, which in effect it means as of 
today, to have the program all planned out in anticipation for construction in the year -- that 
would be 161-162, and obtain the authorizations for capital expenditures at the next session. 
Now as we all know and as I said the other day, we're living in a period of high interest rates 
at the present time, and I appreciate the fact that we can't hazard a guess, or it only would be 
a guess if we made one , as to what rates of interest would be a year hence or two years hence 
as the case may be, in order to obtain this money. In effect it seems to me what we're doing 
is passi<•g a 20 million dollar capital supply today in order that we'll have a carry-over of 
18 million odd a year from now . In other words the planned program as I analyze it, the 
planned program that t_he government has for the coming fiscal year would only require an 
additional 2 millions of dollars . Now it seems to me that it would be far more sensible in 
view of the high interest rates to only attempt, or to authorize, borrowing to the degree of 
the 2 million dollars rather than the 20, if all we are going to accomplish is a carry-over of 
the 18 million dollars at the end of the next fiscal year for the year ' 61-162 . Because while, 
as I have mentioned, we don't know what interest rates may be at that time, it seems to me 
that unlike the viewpoint of my honourable friend the Leader of the Opposition in respect of 
taxes going up, it would appear to me that the only way which interest rates can go, if we're 
going to start having a sensibly planned economy, is down . So I would suggest, I'd suggest 
that rather than asking the Legislature for a 20 million dollar capital supply that it only be 
a two million capital supply in order that we may fulfill the obligations or plans and programs 
of the government that they have for the coming fiscal year 1960-61. It may be that the 
Treasurer or the Minister of Public Works can give me a logical reason as to why it must 
have the availability of the cash in order to plan their program . Offhand that doesn't seem 
logical. It seems to me that for the program for 1961-62 that the planning and the calling 
of tenders for that program can be done without the necessity of a carry-over of 18 million 
dollars .  I can't see any reason why not . 

MR . M. N .  HRYHORC ZUK, Q. C .  (Ethelbert Plains} :  Mr. Chairman, if i m ay on the 
same point before the Minister answers . When we were going through this department' s 
estimates Mr . Chairman will recall that I made the statement that it appeared to me that in 
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(Mr . Hryhorczuk, cont' d) . . • • .  spite of the mile ages shown as having been completed in 1959 
that the amount of money spent was pretty nearly the amount spent in 19 58, and that in my 

estimate there was a carry-over, or would be a carry-over at the end of this fiscal ye ar of 

approximately 17 million dollars . Now this has been more than confirmed, Mr. Chairman, 

because if I have my figures correctly before me as I took them down when the Minister was 

speaking this afternoon, the carry-over is considerably more than 17 million dollars, and I ,  

like the Honourable Leader of the C C F  Party, am unable to comprehend the reason for this 
type of financing ..  Why ask this Legislature for money which you know in advance you will not 

spend? And throughout the consideration of these estimates,  this year's estimates, not only 

in this department but in other departments , we see money left over -- carry-overs .  Well 

to me, for I'm no accountant, it would appear that the government is anxious to show a sur­

plus of one kind or another, because we had predicted that they would find themselves in the 

red at the end of the year . 

Our predictions were made because we were under the impression that this government, 

like any other government, is only asking for money which it intends to spend . Now we are 

t old that they have been asking ior money which they had no intention of spending, because 

those carry-overs have been going on ever since that government was in power . Now we are 

asked that we approve of a capital expenditure of 20 million dollars,  and in the same breath 

the Minister tells us that he won't need this money . Well I think in all fairness to the people 
of the Province, this Legislature should. not pass that capital vote, because I say, Mr .  Chair­

man, that the average layman is as well qualified as I am to interpret the actions of this 

government, and if we did not have this explanation this afternoon, it would never have occur­

red to me that that is the policy of the government. I would have been left with the impression 
that the road program is approximately the size that it was last year or was supposed to have 

been last year . We are no longer in a position in this House to know what the government 

proposes to do in the coming year. Neither are the people of this province in a position to 

know what the government is going to do in the coming year, because the estimates as they are 

put before us are not the amounts that this government intends to use . And it has been said 

before in this Hou se and it will bear repeating, that as far as this government is concerned, 

it's publicity first, foremost and always . Leave a good impression with the public of Manitoba 

in the hope that this will not catch up with us . But it is catching up -- it is catching up . We've 
s een the same thing happen in the Department of Agriculture and I'm sorry to s ay we saw it in 

the Department of Health, the last place that I would expect it. Under the appropriations we 

made four expenditures under the Social Allowances Act which were not spent last year . 
Now, Mr . Chairman, I don't know what the people of the Province of Manitoba are going to 

think about this . But I do want to make this prophecy or forecast, that the people of this pro­

vince are going to realize that the whole story is not being told to them; that in order that the 

people of the province should know the whole story it is necessary for the Opposition to draw 

these facts out of the Ministers of the Crown . And I don't think that that is what we should be 

doing . But we have no choice . We were criticized for being too careful in the perusal of these 

e stimates and the time it took in order to pass some of those departments, but if we are going 
to have this type of financing, Mr . Chairman, then I'm afraid that in the future we have no 

choice but to double our efforts when the estimates come before this House .  
MR. THOMPSON : I think that the latter remarks of the honourable member who has just 

taken his seat are not supported in fact . I gave to the House the program for the coming 

fiscal year, road by road. I gave the total figure which we proposed to spend on that program 

to the last dollar .  We haven't withheld any information from this House or the people of the 

province . Now on the question of whether we could proceed with road construction or make 

plans for the year following the coming fiscal year without this money being voted, I s ay we 

cannot properly do so, because we will be entering into commitments in the coming fiscal 

year which involve the monies which we are not using in the coming fiscal year . In other words 

we \vill be making contracts in 1 60-1 6 1  and become committed to those contracts on behalf of 

the province for work which will be done in 1 61-1 6 2 ,  so that it is not proper to do that without 

the monies authorized by the Legislature . And the other question . On the question of interest, 

Mr . Chairman, on the question of interest: this money is not borrowed until it is needed so 

that we are not piling up an interest debt here . We are calling for the money as it was required 
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. (Mr . Thompson, cont'd) ; • • •  to complete or to start any contracts so there is no undue interest 
expenditure . The money is not called until it is required to be spent . 

MR . HRYHORCZUK: Mr . Chairman, just briefly on the remarks of the Minister .  When 
the program for the coming fiscal year was laid before this House, before the Province of 
Manitoba, the people cf this province ,  we were given to understand -- oh we were left with 
that impression and I don't say that the Minister was to blame for this or anything else . But, 
we were not told at that time as to how much of the actual program that was laid out for the 
year 1959, - and I am talking about the working season of 195S --had been completed. We 
were just generally told that some of the plans for the coming year were work that was not 
completed in '59; it was a carry-over; that some of the contracts had not been completed 
and would be completed in 1961, or in 1960, rather .  Now, I say in order to give the people 
of this province a fair and reasonable understanding of what the government proposes to do 
should have been indicated at that tim e .  And I don' t take any credit for the fact that we have 
been given this statem ent. But there will be people that will feel that the Honourable Minister 
came across with this statement today simply because it was pointed out that there must be 
a big carry-over when his plan was placed before us . 

MR. PAULLEY: Mr . Chairman, I am not quite satisfied with the answer of the Minister. 
I can appreciate the fact that he has mentioned that this money in effect is not borrowed at the 
time, but I can't agree with him on the question of the program for 161-'62 requiring a carry­
over at all. Surely to goodness at the next session of this Legislature, which met this year 
in January, approval for the road program does not entail any actual expenditure of money 
for the program . Or let me put it in another way by a question to the Honourable tbe Minister 
of Public Works . Can we conclude from his remarks, because of the fact that they have to 
have this carry-over so far as capital is concerned because of the commitments they may ·enter 
into or the tenders that they may call for for road construction, that it entails any expenditure 
of actual money for the program which won't start until after the end of the next forthcoming 
fiscal year? Now it seems to me that the mere calling for tenders of a program doesn't of 
necessity mean that we have to have the money carry-over in order ·to do that, and that it is 
readily available to the Government to obtain at a subsequent session of the legislature 
sufficient monies for the program that they have planned out. So I can't see the argument of 
my honourable friend in respect of having to have this money in order to plan their future 
programs . 

MR. THOMPSON : Mr . Chairman, I feel that the eiplanation is quite obvious . I !mow 
the money would not be spent in the coming fiscal year but it would be committed. We prob­
ably will meet again in a year from now . Before that time we will be entering into contracts 
for '61-2 . We will be binding the Province of Manitoba. Can we do that without having the 
authorization of this House? We say, no . We can do it only with that authorization, because 
we are binding the monies of the province in this coming fiscal year . 

MR . MOLGAT : Mr . Chairman, when the Minister says that he' s  going to enter into 
contracts, does he then propose -to let tenders out for the following year's operations before 
we meet again next year? Well then there'll be no approval such as the one that we have 
passed here in the House for the program which he presented to us recently illl that case . He'll 
be proceeding on the basis without having told the House of any of this . Is that the method of 
operation? 

MR. THOMPSON : I made it clear on current estimates that those roads and others were 
approved last summer. They received the approval and endorsation of this House . Those 
roads, I think, we are authorized to proceed with in '61 and 2 .  I have already said that that's 
what we are going to do. That' s the schedule for this year . The others that I left out will be 
carried forward to the next year, and those we intend to m ake contracts on and have them 
ready for the year following. Therefore we feel that we can't do that without having the 
authorization of monies available . 

MR. HRYHORCZUK: Mr . Chairman, I am getting more confused all the time here . Are 
we, in this Legislature, to understand the Minister that this Legislature has approved expend­
itures on roads to come in the future? Is that what we're to understand? 

MR. THOMPSON: I wa.S answering my honourable friend who said, would we be building 
new roads which haven't been placed before tile House. -Those roads were pla.ced before the 
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(Mr . Thompson, cont'd) , • • •  House last summer, some of which will be built in '61-2 . 
MR. HRYHORCZUK: In other words your yearly estimates don't mean anything. They 

don't mean that the estimates are made for the fiscal year within which we are considering 
them . They could be for two and three and four years in advance . Is that right? 

MR . THOMPSON : I think it's clear enough that the monies we are voting now involve 
a certain portion for this coming fiscal year and a carry-over for the following fiscal year . 
Our road program , I think, is clearly set out . I don't understand the confusion . We have 
given the schedule of roads ; we have said it will take 33 million odd to do that job and that 
is the picture for the coming fiscal year. 

MR . PREFONTAINE: Mr. Chairman, m ay I take it then that the road program announced 
and passed last July is still the government's road program and might be done this year --
so the two roads I have mentioned might be constructed this year ? (Interjection} So that parts 
of the program that was approved last year is not good for this year and may be good next 
year ? But will it have to be re-voted again next year, or passed again, or approved as we've 
approved this program for this year? 

MR. THOMPSON : Yes it will be set forth in a schedule, that is a schedule of projects 
for the coming year, coming fiscal year . Next winter I expect we will do the same for the 
following fiscal year . A schedule of projects . 

MR . J. M. HAWRYLUK (Burrows} : Mr . Chairman , I am a little vague on this matter 
too . Does it mean that this Government can go ahead and ask us to pass money like we did 
at the last session on roads that were supposed to have been built, and then you decide that 
you'll build this road a year after ? I think that' s exactly what' s happening right now. I 
can't see the logic tliere at all . I think if we have agreed to spend so many millions of dollars 
on roads for the fiscal year of 1 59-'60, then I think that has top priority as far as building of 
roads . But the impression you have given us is that the roads that we passed on last year, 
you'll have them built the year after or two years later .  In other words you're not sticking 
to the schedule at all . And that, I think, is a point that I'm not very clear on. 

MR. HRYHORC ZUK: Just one more question. I don't intend to ask any more, but I'd 
like the clarification on one other point . If I have the figure right here the Minister told 
us that there'll be a carry-over of 27 million as of March 31st, 1960 - that's the fiscal year 
we're in right now . Just a moment ago he told us that the program, road program for this 
year is 33 million . Is that right? 

MR. THOMPSON : The gross figure . 
MR . HRYHORC ZUK: That's including recoveries from Ottawa? Could you give us what 

that figure is insofar as the province is concerned. (Interjection} 28 million ? All right then, 
if we take the 27 million carry-over plus the 20 million that we have in capital expenditure, 
that m akes a total of 47 million that the Minister is asking for . 

MR. MOLGAT : Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, I am still not very clear on what the govern­
ment's program is here . Coming back again to the publicity schedule here, where he says 
45 million six hundred highways program . The Minister told me that that included the works 
covered, I presume, by this green schedule plus the works in the general Public Works Depart­
ment of 14 million. Is that correct? Well now, in this 14 million though, Mr . Chairman, there 
is only a portion of it that' s highways , because we find here in this total expenditure of 14, 
that' s the total vote for the department isn't it, which . • •  

MR . THOMPSON: . • • • • • . • • • • .  figure I think, isn't it? 11 million. 
MR . MOLGAT : 11 million being highways, aids to municipalities and public works . Now, 

that is the 33 million, which is this green schedule plus 11. Is that the figures now? Even 
in this 11 though, Mr . Chairman, there is a good part of this which can hardly be a highway 
program, is it ·? Such things as for example operations of stores and storage yards, district 
offices and laboratory materials and -- well in fact, most of this with the exception of the 
actual construction are standard expenses for the department . I don't quite see them as coming 
into a construction program . They would be there, most of them, even though the government 
reduced its total expenditure very considerably. 

MR . THOMPSON: No, the actual construction program is contained in the 33 million 
dollar figure . That• s construction . The figures to which you are referring which total approx­
imately 11 million for highway expenditure, includes administration, maintenance of trunk 
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(Mr. Thompson, cont'd) • • • •  highways, of secondary roads, aids to municipalities and every­
thing else . That figure has no other significance when added to the 33 million, other than that 
the total means what is involved in highways and roads in all departments and in both construc­
tion and maintenance and aids . 

MR . HRYHORCZUK: Mr. Chairman, the statement I am going to make is 11ot in the form 
of an accusation or anything; it is only for clarification, because I am not satisfied with the 
answers here . I am not by nature suspicious ,  but I can't help but be somewhat reluctant in 
accepting the Minister's explanation . Now I am asking him a question . If we carry on this 
type of financial policy, would it be possible for the government in a pre-election year to 
.carry out its normal amount of work and reduce taxes because of these carry-Qvers ? 

MR . THOMPSON: Taxes have no direct relation -- this is a capital expenditure, not 
a current • • • • • . • •  

MR . HA WRYLUK: • • • • • • • •  Mr. Chairman .  For example we have the figures that were 
given by the Honourable Minister of the expenditures for· 1958-159 . There you say it came 
to $17 , 828, 492 . Have you - in the planning in 1958 and '59, have you actually fulfilled the 
outline of the roads for '58-159 ? I mean, have they all been built according to the specifica­
tion figures that we got at that time? 

MR . T. P. HILLHOUSE, Q. C. (Selkirk) : Mr. Chairman, one point that I'd like to have 
made clear, Mr. Chairman, is this .  It's quite clear that this comprises the scheduled ro.ad 
program for 1960-61 .  Now you say you're asking this money to be voted and that you will 
have a carry-Qver as of April - of Marc}} 31, 1961 and of $18 million odd and that the reason 
why you want that carry-Qver is so as you can commit the government to future contracts • 

Now the point that I want to be clear on is this . Are any of these future contracts listed in 
this schedule, or are they in respect of contracts that still would have to be approved by the 
House after March 31, 1961? 

MR . THOMPSON : No, those contracts which you have in your hand are that statement . 
That was roads which it is anticipated can be built this coming fiscal year. None of those, 
it is hoped, will have to be carried over into the 61-2 . The departm ent feels that they can 
build as stated there, in 60-61, so that none of those will be carried over, but others will 
be that were approved last summer . The program for last summer was the 60-61 program 
and we've rescheduled it as I have stated, and gave the reasons in the discussion on current 
estimates - I think I dealt fully with reasons; part of it's been carried over and the carry­
over will be constructed in '61-2 . 

MR . IDLLHOUSE : . . • . . . .  the scheduled program in this list you have given us? 
MR . THOMPSON : Yes, that we scheduled last . 
MR . IDLLHOUSE: But there is still that point that is not clear in my mind. You're going 

t o  have a carry-Qver if we vote the amount of money that yoU: are asking for now . You're going 
to have a carry-Qver of over $18 million at the end of the next fiscal year, and the reason why 
you ask for that carry-over is so that you can enter into binding contracts during the interval 
for future projects . Now the point that I want to know is this: Has this House been furnished 
with a list of these future projects? 

MR . THOMPSON : You had them in the list of last summer . 
MR . PAULLEY: Let's get this clear . It seems to me that the program that the depart­

ment anticipates for this year ,  has estimated the cost -- and this just deals with the provincial 
figures, and not federal - if I got the figures correctly from the Minister, that the estimate 
of the provincial share of roads for which approval is requested, is 28 million 146 odd thousand 
dollars • • • • •  -- (Interjection)- No that' s this year . That' s the program for which we have the 
schedule before us to complete . It is estimated to cost $28 , 000, 000 odd. It is anticipated 
that there will be a carry-over as of a few days from now, March 31st of this year, a carry­
over of $27, 000, 000 . Right? In other words, the difference between the two is approximately 
$1, 000, 000; in other words, that the department could complete all of the program as listed 
on the schedule , for an additional expenditure of approximately $1, 000, 000 . Now then, the 
government is not asking us for $1, 000 , 000 in order to complete their program . They're 
asking us for $20 , 000 , 000 . Now then my question is this -- then we will have a carry-Qver 
of approximately $18, 500, 000, or let' s call it nineteen. Now then, does or does not the gov­
ernment have to, notwithstanding that carry-over, obt ain from the Legislature authorization 
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(Mr . Paulley, cont' d) • . • • .  for the expenditure ? In other words if there are carry-overs at 
any time that are not used for the purpose authorized by the Legislature, has the government -
the power to use that money without -- for specific purposes-- without the approval of a 
session of the Legislature ? And if it has that power, then as far as I am concerned, they 
have in the kitty for use for whatever they like this approximately $19 million . But if they 
have to, at the end of the fiscal year, or for the forthcoming fiscal year, obtain the approval 
of the Legislature for additional expenditures, they ·have to obtain authority for that -- then 
why a carry-over, if you have sufficient monies to complete the program that the legislature 
ha8 authorized? I would like an answer on that because it doesn't seem . . .  

MR . THOMPSON: Mr . Chairman, I feel that I have explained that . I think I follow your 
logic right to the last sentence . We need $1 . 3  million or so of this $20, 000, 000 to complete 
the 160-61 program . We are carrying over the balance -- we'll have approporiated -- voted 
by this House the balance of $18 , 500, 000; therefore, we'll be able to commit a portion of 
that in entering-into contract the coming winter, the coming autumn, for 161-2, in order that 
we can proceed in a progressive manner with road construction; but we don't have to have 
any further vote of the House� you're voting for it now; if you pass it now you will have 
approved of it . 

· 

MR . PAULLEY: • . • . . • . • •  in point, Mr. Chairman; that's my main point, and that's the 
question I'm directing to the benches opposite . Do we or do we not, or do you or do you not 
have to obtain the approval of the Legislature for the expenditures of the amount of money 
that you have as a carry-over ? 

MR . ROBLIN : • • . • . • • . •  

MR. PAULLEY: Pardon? 
MR. ROBLIN • • . • • • • • • • •  

MR . PAULLEY: But we don't know what you're going to spend it on. 
MR. ROBLIN: Yes you do. 
MR . PAULLEY: We don't, because the Minister has told us, or the government has told 

us that they estimate for expenditures of this year $28 , 000, 000 . They've told us that they 
estimate their expenditures of this year at $28 , 000, 000, which we of the Legislature are 
approving because the government has satisfied us as to their program and what they're going 
to spend it on, and that' s what we're approving • •  ,. (Interjection:-- on roads) . · Yes, right on 
roads . Now then does it mean -- and here I'm back to my basic question-- does it mean that 
we're giving approval for the carry-over of the $18 million odd for something that we don't 
know what the government is going to do with in respect of roads ? I think that is the question . 
You see I can appreciate it . I can appreciate it for instance, Mr. Chairman, if I m ay deviate 
just for a moment -- I can appreciate in respect of the new Hydro development plant where 
there is a project that is going to take a number of yea rs to build because it is of a specific 
nature . We know that when we vote a capital supply for $140 million odd that we have given 
the power to the government, because of the fact that they are going to build a plant at Grand 
Rapids , but I suggest, Sir, that there is a difference, insofar as roads are concerned, because 
it appears to me that it' s true, it's a carry-over, and if the supply is granted, the government 
has the authority to have in the kitty approximately $19 million for the purpose of roads, but 
the Legislature don't know for what purpose . That' s my point . 

MR. THOMPSON : Mr .  Chairman, the purpose is as set out in 2 schedule (a), highways, 
roads, related projects, structures and facilities . 

MR. PAULLEY: Isn't the Legislature entitled to know what roads ? We are being told 
in respect of $140 million in respect of Grand Rapids but we are not being told the program that 
the government has for the expenditure of the $19 million odd carry-over which the Minister 
s ays will allow them to enter into contract for the fiscal year commencing March 31st 1961; 
and I suggest, Mr .  Chairman, that there is a big difierence . 

MR . THOMPSON : We have laid before you the program for 60-61.  During current 
estimates I stated that we would stand behind the 60-61 list which was announced at the summer 
session. Therefore I think it is only logical that the roads which are not in this year's schedule, 
will be in next year's schedule . We've already said they will be, and they will be there . Now 
constitutionally speaking, on a constitutional issue of whether we are obliged on this vote to 
lay before the House in detail, every road, I don't think we would be obliged to give a mile by 
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(Mr . Thompson, cont'd) • • • • .  mile survey of roads, statement on road construction. I'm not 
sure on that point -- but regardless of that, we have said that we will be compl1ating those 
roads which were left out of the former schedule in 61-2 and they certainly ·sill use quite a 
portion of this money which is being voted. 

· 

MR . PAULLEY: . . • . .  Mr . Chairman, just in connection with this point, am I given to 
understand then, that the carry-over after the fiscal year 1961 can and will only be used in 
connection with the construction of roads for which approval has been granted by the Legis­
lature and as outlined by both the present Minister and the former Minister of Public Works ? 

MR . THOMPSON : No, I think not, Mr . Chairman . We have the responsibility of road 
building. We are asking for money for road building . I think it' s right that if we feel a road 
should be built in a certain place whether it was in that program or not, that we would have 
authority to go ahead and build it. I don't think we can give any such commitment as you ask. 

MR . PAULLEY: . . • . • . •  in opposition to know where and on what roads the authority is 
granted. I think that's one of .our functions here . 

MR . ffiLLHOUSE: I feel, Mr. Chairman, by the same token we are only obJJ,ged to vote 
sufficient money for a road program for a ce rtain fiscal year and we are under n� obligation 
to vote sufficient money to carry on a program for a year following, unless we know what 
roads are included in that program . 

MR . ORLIKOW: Mr . Chairman, I don't go along entirely with the Honourable Member 
for Selkirk. I think that any government would need to have some leeway. The Minister has 
told us that as closely as he can estimate he has a road program that has cost $28 million . 
He's given us what was $27 million, I think, in the kitty; there is so much in the current 
estimates . It seems to me -- I don't blame the Minister for saying maybe we won't have the 
wet weather this coming year that we had last year; maybe we'll be able to get on with the 
job faster than we anticipate -- and if the Minister were to say, " Let's pass two or three 
or four million dollars extra so that we can get on with the job , "  I would have no objection, 
but I must say that I can't understand at all why the Minister needs to have a sum of 
$18, 500, 000 more than the Minister estimates he is going to spend. It seems to me that 
there is no relationship between what the Minister thinks he is going to spend and what he 
is asking us to appropriate . It seems to me that what he is doing is in fact saying: " I  want 
to have somewhere between 6 and 9 months more money than I'm going to use, and I'll come 
back some day next year and tell you what I am going to use it on ." And that, it seems to 
me is asking much too much. 

MR. CHAIRMAN : . . • • • It is 5 :30 . I leave the Chair till 8 o' clock. 
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